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DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S R EPORT 

To the Honorable M ayor and City Councilors 
City of Pryor Creek 
Mayes County, Oklahoma 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental act1V1t1es, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Pryor Creek (the City 
of Pryor, or the City), Oklahoma as of and for the year ended June 30, 20 I I , which co llect ively comprise the 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. T hese financia l statements are the responsibility of 
the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards app licable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A n audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disc losures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financia l statement presentation. We believe th at our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opin ion, the financial statements referred to above present fa irly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type acti vities, each major fund , and the 
aggregate remaining fund in formation of the City of Pryor, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 20 I I , and the respecti ve 
changes in financial position and, where app licable, cashnows thereof for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Uni ted States of America require that the management's 
discuss ion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financia l statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essentia l part of financial repo1iing for 
placing the basic financ ial statements in an appropriate operationa l, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the in formation and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opin ion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limi ted procedures do not prov ide us with suffic ient ev idence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financia l statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Pryor, Oklahoma ·s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining 
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of 
add itional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combin ing and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibi lity of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures app lied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconci ling such informat ion directly to the underly ing 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the audit ing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on them. 

W INGARD, RAGSDALE & L ANGLEY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, PLLC 

May 8, 2012 
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CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(UNAUDITED) 
JUNE 30, 2011 

The discussion and analysis of the City of Pryor Creek's financial performance provides an 
overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. It 
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements. 

This discussion is divided into two parts. The first pertains to the entire City of Pryor Creek 
overall with very little detail to the Municipal Utility Department, a department of the City of 
Pryor Creek. The second part pertains to the Municipal Utility Department, which was created 
by the Charter for the City of Pryor Creek and operates under the Utility Board of five members 
as explained in the notes to the financial statements. 

PART I 

WHO WEARE 

As of June 30, 2011 the mayor, council members, clerk and treasurer, all of whom are elected, 
consisted of the following: . 

Mayor 

Council Members 

Clerk 

Treasurer 

Jimmy Tramel 

Carolyn Wise 
Tony Smith 
Drew Stott 
Roy Ray 
Gary Harris 
Greg Rosamond 
Ronnie Sharp 
Greg Rosamond 

Eva Smith 

Lois Thompson 

UNAUDITED 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The total assets of the City for its governmental and business-type activities exceeded its 
liabilities as of June 30, 2011 by $91,172,519 as reflected in Statement 1, an increase of 
$770,276 from the prior year. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt increased 
$2,891,444 due mainly to $2,489,075 of capital asset related debt being retired. Of this 
amount, $2,000,000 of debt was paid before the due dates. Restricted net assets decreased 
$1 ,886,105 due mainly to the $2,000,000 of debt paid before the due dates. All other fund 
balances decreased $235,063, which is further discussed later in this section. 

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010 

Net Assets $91.172.519 $90.402,243 

• The City's Governmental Fund balance as reflected in the "Statement ofRevenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances" (Statement 4) decreased by $142,518. The 
governmental net assets decreased by $2,338,978. (Statement 2). The major reasons for this 
are the prepayment of $2,000,000 of general obligation bond debt (the note is reflected in the 
Recreation Center balance sheet) by the GOB Sinking Fund, resulting in a $1,579,97 decrease 
in fund balance and $990,272 expended for capital outlay by the Street and Drainage Fund, 
resulting in a decrease of$480,725 

• The City's General Fund balance decreased from $1,659,337 to $1,514,119 during the current 
fiscal year. All ofthis is unreserved. 

• The City's governmental capital assets (net of depreciation) increased $12,000 (See Table 4) 
during the current year. Details on this are in Note 3.D. to the financial statements. 

• See Part II for the accomplishments of the Municipal Utility Department. 

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic 
financial statements. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 
No. 34, "Basic Financial Statements - and Managements' Discussion and Analysis - for State and 
Local Governments," ("GASB 34"), the City's basic financial statements include three 
components: government-wide financial statements; fund financial statements; and notes to the 
basic financial statements. The major features of these financial statements are summarized as 
follows: 

UNAUDITED 
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Scope 

Required 
financial 
statements 

Accounting basis 
and measurement 
focus 

Type of asset/ 
liability 
information 

Type of inflow/ 
outflow 
information 

Government-wide 
Statements 

Entire City government 
and the City's component 
units 

-Statement of net assets 
-Statement of activities 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long­
term 

All revenues and expenses 
during year, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid 

Governmental Funds 

The activities of the City 
that are not proprietary, 
such as police, fire, library, 
streets, etc. 

-Balance sheet 
-Statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and changes 
in fund balances 

Modified accrual accounting 
and current financial 
re.sources focus 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
assets included 

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon 
after the end of the year; 
expenditures when goods or 
services have been received 
and payment is due during 
the year or soon thereafter 

Proprietary Funds 

Activities the City operates 
similar to private businesses 
such as utilities and the 
golf course 

-Statement of net assets 
-Statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in 
net assets 

-Statement of cash funds 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-tem1 and long-term 

All revenues and expenses 
during year, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner s'imilar to 
statements of a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods. 

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees 
and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include public 

UNAUDITED 
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safety activities, streets, cultural, library, parks and recreation activities and general government 
activities. The business-type activities of the City include utilities and a golf course. 

A component unit is included in the basic financial statements and consists of a legally separate 
entity for which the City is financially accountable and that has the same governing board as the 
City. This blended component unit is the Pryor Public Works Authority. The County Wide Fire 
Department Fund is also blended into the financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Statements 1 and 2 ofthis report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All the funds of the City can be divided into 
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the governmental-wide fmancial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating the City's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide fmancial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds 
statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to the 
government-wide fmancial statements in order to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains 20 individual governmental funds for financial reporting purposes. 
Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the 
governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the 
General, Street and Drainage and the Recreation Center Construction Fund, which are considered 
to be major funds. Data for the other 17 governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non major governmental funds is 
provided in the non major funds supplementary section ofthis report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and some of its special 
revenue funds and capital project funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provide~ 
for the General Fund and the Street and Drainage Fund in the basic financial statements. 

The governmental funds financial statements can be found on Statements 3 and 4 of this report. 

UNAUDITED 
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Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the 
government-wide financial statements but in more detail. The proprietary fund financial 
statements provide separate information for the utility and golf course operations. Combining 
schedules for the proprietary funds are presented in the supplementary information. 
The proprietary funds financial statements can be found at Statements 5, 6, and 7 of this report. 

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements provide 
additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can 
be found beginning on page 3 7 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $91,172,519 at the close of the 
current fiscal year. $6,108,950 of this amount is unrestricted, assigned and unassigned, reflecting 
a healthy financial position. Additionally the City has $11,976,318 reserved for various 
purposes. 

As shown on Table 1, the largest portion of the City's net assets, $73,087,251, reflects its 
investment in capital assets less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. This 
includes all infrastructure as previously mentioned in this report. The City uses these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other resources, 
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City's net assets, $12,816,342, represents resources that are subject 
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The major restrictions on net assets are funding 
source restrictions. $9,624,778 of the $12,816,342 pertains to the Municipal Utility Department 
and is discussed in Part II of this discussion. $1,024,586 of the Governmental Activities amount 
is reserved for debt service and $1,326,954 is reserved for capital asset acquisitions. The 
reserved for debt service declined $1,579,697 due to a $2,000,000 prepayment of debt and the 
reserve for capital asset acquisition decreased $214,583. However, its balance of$1,326,954 is 
considered healthy. Additionally, $840,024 is restricted for various purposes. The remaining 
balance of total net assets of$6,108,950 may be used to meet the City's obligations to citizens 
and creditors in accordance with the finance-related legal requirements reflected in the City's 
fund structure. This compares to $6,344,013 in the prior year. Such balances for Governmental 
activities decreased from $3,327,048 to $2,769,884 at June 30,2011, a decrease of$557,164. 
The unrestricted for business activities is $5,268,926. 

Included in current and other assets for Governmental Activities is $4,516,724 of cash and 
investments compared to $7,033,404 in the prior year, a decrease of $2,516,680. The Street and 
Drainage Fund and the GOB Sinking Fund accounted for $2,100,275 of this decrease for reasons 
already mentioned in this discussion. 
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At the end of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, The City reported positive balances in all three 
categories of net assets, both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and 
business-type activities. 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

Long-term debt outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

$ 

TABLE 1 
NET ASSETS 

(In Thousands) 
JUNE30, 

Governmental 
Activities 

2011 2010 

Business-type 
Activities 

2011 2010 

5,595 $ 8,040 $ 15,072 $ 14,699 
46,036 46,024 28.419 28,029 

51,631 54,064 43 491 42,728 

1,368 3,857 
473 567 ____f_,ill ~ 

473 567 3,476 5.822 

$ Sl IS8 $ S3 421 $ 4Q QIS $36 2Q6 
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Total 
Primary 

Government 
2011 2010 

$20,667 $ 22,739 
74.455 74,053 

95,122 96.792 

1,368 3,857 
2,581 2.532 

3.949 6.389 

$21,113 $2Q 4Q3 



Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Operating grants & contributions 
Capital grants & contributions 
Contributed assets 

General revenues 
Sales tax 
Other taxes 
Other general revenues 

Total revenues 

Program expenses 
General government 
Public safety 
Street 
Culture, recreation & library 
Utilities 
Golf 
Recreation Center 

Total expenses 

Excess (deficiency) before 
special items and transfers 

Transfers 

Increase (decrease) in 
net assets 

TABLE2 
Changes in Net Assets 

(In Thousands) 
June 30, 

Governmenta l 
Activit ies 

2011 

$ 338 
172 
110 
223 

5,313 
726 

____llQ 

7.012 

917 
3,617 
1,935 

921 

----

7.390 

( 378) 

l.L.2ill 

~" ~~2) 

2010 

$ 364 
78 

238 
979 

5,222 
896 

___l£Q 

7.897 

905 
3,480 
1,916 
1,021 

----

7.322 

575 

..L...m 

Lm 
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Business-type 
Activities 

2011 2010 

$13,575 $13,018 

1,313 1,290 

____ill _____12l 

15.001 14,561 

12,462 12,124 
358 415 

___l,Qll 1.253 

13 ,853 13,792 

1,148 769 
__L2QJ_ ~ 

$ 3 102 .L82l 

Total 
Primary 

Government 
2011 2010 

$13,913 $13,382 
172 78 
110 238 
223 979 

6,626 6,512 
726 896 

___w_ ____m_ 

22,013 22.458 

917 905 
3,617 3,480 
1,935 1,916 

921 1,021 
12,462 12,124 

358 415 
___l,Qll 1,253 

21.243 2l.l14 

770 1,344 
-- ---- --

_$___l1Q_ $ 1,344 



Governmental Activities. All funds of the City remain healthy. Sales tax increased about 
$90,000, but use tax decreased about $156,000, a 33% decrease. Use tax is generally generated 
by construction activity and is usually the last to recover in a down economy. No layoffs or 
reduction of services were experienced and capital expenditures increased by about $313,000. 
The City prudently maintains sufficient fund balances in all funds so as to withstand economic 
downturns. 

Business-type Activities. Business type activities are the Municipal Utility Department, Golf 
Course and the Recreation Center. The Statement ofNet Assets and the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets reflect these funds individually in Statements 5 and 6 of the 
financial statements. All proprietary funds had an increase in net assets. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S MAJOR FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assessing the City's financial requirements. In particular unreserved fund balance may serve as a 
useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal 
year. 

General Fund The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the 
current fiscal year, the unreserved (designated and undesignated) fund balance of the General 
Fund was $1 ,514,119, constituting 100% ofthe fund balance, which was $145,218 less than the 
prior year's General Fund balance. This fund is considered very healthy. However, to protect the 
General Fund from deterioration, a 1110 cent sales tax and the use tax was reallocated from the 
Real Property Acquisition Fund and the Capital Outlay Fund respectively for such receipts 
beginning in February, 2010. Without this, the General Fund would probably have decreased 
even more. Both such funds are considered healthy enough to be without such revenues for 
several years. 

Street and Drainage Street and Drainage decreased its fund balance by $480,725 for the year. 
Major street projects were the cause of such a decrease. Bonds issued in December ,2011 will 
provide about $4,000,000 for major street projects. 

Municipal Utility Department See Part II of this discussion. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY 

The following Table 3 presents a summary analysis of the General Fund budget and actuals for 
the current fiscal year. 

UNAUDITED 
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TABL.E 3 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK 

SUMMARY ANALYSIS OF GENERAL FUND BUDGET 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011 

Variance 
Category Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 

Adopted Final {Budget Basis) {Negative) 

Revenue 
Sales tax $2,687,191 $2,687,191 $2,996,581 $ 309,390 
All other taxes 400,464 400,464 441,600 41,136 
All other revenues 386.664 386,664 509.772 123.108 

Total revenues 3,474,319 3,474.319 3,947,953 473.634 

Expenditures 
General government ( 1) 1,115,720 1,087,720 763,021 324,699 
Public safety (2) 3,126,879 3,151,879 3,075,534 76,345 
Maintenance garage 53,372 53,372 50,662 2,710 
Cultural and recreation 
services {3) 590,635 590,635 566,715 23,920 

Safety director 54,509 54,509 51,112 3,397 
Cemetery 180.733 183.733 182,538 1 195 

Total expenditures 5.121,848 5.121,848 4,689.582 432.266 

Total excess {deficiency) 
of revenues over 
expenditures (1 ,647,529) {1,647,529) ( 741,629) 905,900 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 550,000 550,000 550,000 

Beginning fund balance 1,097,529 1,097,529 1,097.529 

Excess {deficiency) of 
revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and 
other uses $ $ $ 2Q5,2QQ ~ 2Q~ 2QQ 

(1) Includes General Government, City Clerk, City Treasurer, City Attorney and Planning and Zoning . 

(2) Includes Municipal Court, Police, Fire and Civil Emergency Management 

(3) Includes Parks and Pool and Library. 
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The basis of accounting for budgetary purposes for the General Fund is the modified accrual, 
i. e., revenues are recognized when received and expenses are recognized when encumbered. 

The budget method authorized by Oklahoma Statute adopted by the City for its general fund 
places a limit on the amount that can be budgeted. The amount to be budgeted for the next fiscal 
year is the unreserved fund balance at the beginning of the fiscal year plus 90% of its revenues 
for the year just ended. An exception to this is that 1 00% of the funds budgeted by the Municipal 
Utility Department to be transferred to the City's General Fund in accordance with the City 
Charter is budgeted. 

The budgetary fund balance is reconciled to the balance sheet fund balance in the Required 
Supplementary Information. 

Generally, the City attempts to prepare a budget that will result in a small positive increase in the 
fund balance. Generally, this is accomplished by only budgeting 90% of the prior year revenues 
and budgeting amounts, primarily in General Government, that will not be expended. 

The reason for the decrease in fund balance in the current year has generally been explained 
earlier in this discussion under the caption "General Fund". 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The City's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2011 amounted to $74,455,000 (net of 
accumulated depreciation) This investment, detailed in Table 4, in a broad range of capital 
assets includes land, structures and improvements, equipment, and construction in progress. 

I invite you to review Note 3 .D Capital Assets to the Financial Statements, which is included 
herein and details the capital asset activity. Also, see Part II for further discussion concerning the 
Municipal Utility Department. 
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Land 
Buildings & improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Utility property 
Construction in progress 

Long-term Debt 

TABLE4 
Capital Assets at Year-end 

(Net of Depreciation, In Thousands) 
June 30, 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

2011 2010 

2,059 $ 1,886 
1,297 1,040 
2,669 2,968 

39,946 40,075 

65 55 

$46.036 $46 024 

Business-type 
Activities 

2011 2010 

$ 395 $ 395 
6,282 6,471 
1,116 1,252 

20,608 19,893 
_ _ 1_8 __ 1_8 

$28 419 $28 029 

Totals 
2011 2010 

$ 2,454 $ 2,281 
7,579 7,511 
3,785 4,220 

39,946 40,075 
20,608 19,893 

83 ___])_ 

$74.455 $74 053 

Presented below is a summary of the long-term debt of the City's governmental activities at June 
30,2011: 

General obligation bonds $1,200,000 

There were no new debts incurred during the year and $2,400,000 was paid on existing debt. See 
Note 3.G. for further details concerning long-term debt. 

The general obligation bonds are to be paid from the proceeds of a I 12 cent sales tax. Such 
bonds were retired in November, 2011 and new bonds of$7,000,000 were issued in December, 
2011. 

Additional information on long-term debt is included in Note 3.G to the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEW YEAR'S BUDGET 

The City's major governmental revenue, sales tax, increased from the prior year and is expected 
to in more in the future. It is anticipated that use tax will also increase as construction rebounds. 

The next years budget does not eliminate any services or employees. It is expected that the fund 
balance of the General Fund will not increase or decrease substantially in the next fiscal year, 
unless sales and use tax receipts substantially change. 

The long-term economic forecast for the City is quite good. Sales tax was increasing, as was use 
tax, until the national economic recession in the second half of 2008 and into 20 11. However, 
the City appears to be healthy enough to withstand the downturn without affecting services. 
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CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

This managements' discussion and analysis is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, 
and investors and creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the 
City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions or need additional financial 
information, please contact the City of Pryor Creek at (9 18) 825-0888. 

UNAUDITED 
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PART II 

The Municipal Utility Department, City of Pryor Creek Oklahoma was created by the Pryor Creek 
City Charter in 1951. The current five-person board is listed below. 

Chairman: 
Vice-Chairman: 
Secretary: 
Member: 
Member: 

Mr. Jack Ledbetter 
Mr. Mark Roberts 
Mr. Tommy Thompson 
Dr. Robert Lindsey 
Mr. Henry Neftzger 

The Utility Board has the care, custody, and management of the existing electric system, water 
system, gas distribution system, street lighting system, and sewage disposal system and may 
enlarge and extend them under the guidelines of the City Charter. The Board has under its 
control, the complete operation of these utilities and such other as the people of the City ofPryor 
Creek may acquire. All of these utilities shall be collectively known as the Municipal Utility 
Department. 

The Utility Board shall employ all persons necessary in the operation of the utilities and fix their 
salaries, condition of servitude, and terms of office, and shall adopt such rules and regulations, as 
it may deem necessary for the proper conduct of business. 

I 

USING THE ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement ofNet Assets (page 
8) and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets (page 9) document the 
income and expenses (on a full accrual basis) of the Utility Board for the current fiscal year, and 
how they affect the Net Assets of the Board. Net Assets are ALL assets of the Board less ALL 
liabilities. 

The Statement of Cash Flows (page 1 0) documents the sources and uses of cash, and shows 
whether cash increased or decreased during the current fiscal year. Notes to the financial 
statements (page 12) provide additional detail that further explain information found in the 
various statements. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

The following presents the management overview and analysis of the Municipal Utility Board's 
financial condition and performance for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and June 30, 201 1, 
and proposed projects for fiscal year ending June 3 0, 201 1. 

UNAUDITED 
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For the years ended, net assets changed as follows: 

Beginning net assets 
Increase in net assets 

Ending net assets 

June 30. 2011 

$32,936,210 
767,884 

$33.704.094 

June 30, 2010 

$32,254,192 
682,018 

$32.936,210 

Included in net assets are amounts reserved for specific long term purposes. The following 
reserve accounts have been funded by excess revenues over several fiscal years. 

Reserve for Extension, Capital Improvements 
Reserve for Emergency and Natural Disasters 

Reserve for Capital Improvements from Sales 
Tax. This reserve is funded by $0.005 
sales tax and interest revenue. This account 
is used to fund the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Depreciation Account; excess funds will 
be used for Utility Extensions 

TOTAL 

June 30, 2011 

$1,108,128 
1,200?000 

$2,308,128 

7,226.073 

$ 9.534.201 

June 30.2010 

$ 970,628 
1,200.000 

$2,170,628 

6.792.709 

$ 8.963.337 

The primary source of revenues generated by the board are sales of utilities to its customers. 
Revenues are as follows: 

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010 

Operating revenues $12,797,861 $12,248,949 
Sales tax revenue 875,207 860,149 
Interest income 106,545 247.397 

Total Revenues $13.779.613 $13,356,425 

Utilities are purchased and then resold to Municipal Utility Board Customers. The annual cost of 
purchased utilities is $8,05 1,644 and $8,435,399 for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2010 and 
June 30, 2011 respectively. 

UNAUDITED 
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Expenses are as follows: 

Operating expenses 
Loss on asset disposal 

Total Expenses 

Percentages by expense category are as follows: 

Purchased utilities 
Payroll and related expenses 
Operation, Maintenance and other 

June 30, 2011 

$12,428,133 
33,596 

$12,461.729 

June 30, 2011 

68% 
22% 
10% 

100% 

June 30, 2010 

$12,094,632 
29,845 

$12.1 24,477 

June 30,2010 

66% 
23% 
11% 

100% 

The resulting net income before contributions and transfer is $1,232,018 and $1,317,884 for the 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2010 and 2011 respectively. The Board transfers to the City of Pryor 
Creek General fund 5.5% of gross revenue with a cap of $550,000. For the year ended June 30, 
2010, the amount was $550,000. The amount for the year ended June 30, 2011 is $550,000. The 
projected amount to be transferred for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 is $550,000. 

DEPARTMENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 

• Hired probationary utility clerk in business office 

• Sent one office staff employee to a one day administrative assistance conference in Tulsa, 
Oklahoma 

• Purchased and installed a laser color printer in business office 

• Evaluated the replacement of IBM 6400 printer and determined it was most cost effective to 
perform printer inspection and reinstate maintenance agreement on existing IBM 6400 printer 

Proposed Projects for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012 

• Advanced training for one-half of staff with Incode on utility billing software 

• Engineering plans for construction of new office building 

UNAUDITED 
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• Explore/cost analysis for administrative office computer replacement or upgrade 

• MESO Management Training and the continuation of office staff training 

• Purchase and installation of Smart Laser color printer 

• Explore/cost analysis of scanner 

• Explore/cost analysis of online bill payment/credit card payment through Tyler Technology 
Support System. 

GAS DEPARTMENT 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 

• New construction and replacement projects in the Gas Department funded out of operating 
funds in the amount of$142,301.82 

• Completed annual gas leak survey with two #1 leaks found on customer side, zero #2 leaks 
found, six #3 tap leaks found and three yard leaks found. 

• Completed four inch gas line replacement on Southwest 1st Street from Edith Street to 
Westside of Maple Street. 

• Completed four inch gas line replacement from Park Street to Graham A venue between 
South Rowe and south Coo-Y-Yah Streets 

• Replaced two inch gas line between Southeast 9th and Southeast 1Oth Streets from Thurman 
to V ann Street 

• Purchased an additional Flame Pak and CGI detector 

• Replaced two inch gas line between Southeast 15th and Southeast 16th Street. 

Proposed Projects for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012 

• Complete survey and replace 3,000 feet of six inch gas line from Pryor Creek to Lakeview 
Drive 

• Replace two inch gas lines from 7th street to 9th street on State, Jackson and Wood Streets 

• Replace two inch gas line on Southeast lOth Street from Thurman to Vann Street 

UNAUDITED 
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• Replace four inch gas line at Grove Crest and Meadow View Circle at Brookfield Terrace, 
Ridgewood and Cherry Point Lane 

• Replace two inch gas line on West Graham and North Mayes Street 

• Replace four inch gas line on North side of Grove Crest to South side of Ridgewood on 
South Elliott Street 

• Replace two inch gas line west on South side of Ridgewood 

• Relocation of crossings for Mayes County South Elliott Street Project 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 

• New Construction and replacement projects in the Water Department funded out of operating 
funds in the amount of $142,511.56 

• Replaced two inch water line with eight inch water line and fire hydrants on South Veyda 
Street from Southeast 9th Street to 14th Street 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Replaced two inch water line on North Garfield from Northeast 5th to dead end 

Replaced two inch water line on South Elliott Street between Irving Street loop 

Replace four inch water line with six inch water line on Harris Street between Park Street and 
Northeast 2nd Street 

Replace four inch water line with six inch water line on North Coo-Y-Yah Street from East 
Graham toNE 5th Street 

Installed new two inch water line on Northwest 5th Street from North Whitaker and North 
Mayes Street 

• Temporary repairs to major water leak on 16 inch poly-pipe on south side of Pryor Creek, just 
North of 69A Highway 

Proposed Projects for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012 

• Complete the new construction of Westside Tower on Northwest 5th Street 

• Replace the ten inch water line from US 69 Highway to South Rowe Street along Southeast 
3rd Street 

UNAUDITED 
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• Replace six inch water line Northeast 1st Street to Northeast 4th Street along North Hogan 
Street 

• Replace ten inch water line Between Coo-Y-Yah and Rowe Street 

• Replace six inch water line on South Oak Street 

• Repair 16 inch water line at Pryor Creek Crossing, North of Highway 69 

• Replace 10 inch water line with 12 inch water line from Park and Elliott Street through 
Whitaker Park to Highway 69 and Southeast 3rd Street 

• Install new 2 inch water line from North Bailey Street East to the hospital for alternate feed 
during an emergency 

• Replace 8 inch water line on North Whitaker from Northwest 1st Street to Northwest 5th 
Street 

WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 

• New construction and replacement projects in the Wastewater Collection Department funded 
out of operating funds in the amount of $7,485.97 

• Replaced 200 feet of 4 inch with 6 inch sewer line on Northwest 5th Street from North 
Whitaker and North Mayes Street 

• Replace 6 inch clay tile sewer line under the street on Southeast 17th and South Vann Street 
with 6 inch plastic pipe 

Proposed Projects for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012 

• Replace six inch sewer main 314 and 316 South Elliott Street 

• Extension of sewer main 500 feet in the 2000 block of South Elliott Street 

• Rebuild the wastewater collection system lift station located on Southridge Drive 

• Replace sewer main 100 block on South Bailey Street 

• Replace six inch water line on South Oak Street 

• Replace six inch water line on South Locke from Park Street to dead end 
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• Replace sixteen inch water line at Pryor Creek Crossing North of Highway 69 

• Replace ten inch water line with twelve inch water line from Park and Elliott Street through 
Whitaker Park to Highway 69 and Southeast 3rd Street 

• Install new two inch water line from North Bailey Street East to the hospital for alternate feed 
during an emergency 

• Replace eight inch water line on North Whitaker from Northwest 1st Street to Northwest 5th 
Street 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 

• The Wastewater Treatment Plant major repairs and replacement of equipment are funded 
from the $0.005 Sales Tax Reserve Capital Improvement Account. 

• Completed the evaluation of the WWTP automation and computer systems and purchased 
a replacement computer and software upgrade 

Proposed Projects for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012 

• Replacing the bar screen at the headwork's location at the treatment plant 

• Paint the hoist at the lift station on Southeast 9th Street 

• Replacement of the automatic security gate at the treatment plant 

• Replace roof on treatment plant office and chemical building 

• Renovation of Southeast 9th Street lift station 

• Upgrade PLC program at the plant and Southeast 9th Street lift station 

• Complete WWTP automation and operations software upgrade 

UNAUDITED 
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ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 

• New construction and replacement projects m the Electric Department funded out of 
operating funds in the amount of$128,455.41 

• Completed substation # 1 upgrade 

• Replaced underground primary and secondary electric between Ridgewood Drive and Grove 
Crest 

• Built new underground primary service to Roosevelt School on Northeast 4th Street 

• Replace primary service in Helton addition 

• Built new service to Lincoln School on South Elliott Street 

• Built new overhead and underground primary to AT & T at 20 South Vann Street 

• Replaced and relocated the service and fiber optic to Lincoln School on South Elliott Street 

• Relocation of power lines for Mayes County Low Water Bridge p~oject on N9rth 433 Road 

• Pulled new underground primary and set a transformer to the new addition of the Pryor 
Junior High School on South Hogan Street 

• Built new underground primary and conduit for transformer for new Braum's Store at 101 
Steve Berry Boulevard 

• Built new primary and three-pot bank on Garfield for the new Kla-Mart Building at 601 
North Mill Street 

Proposed projects for Fiscal Year Ending 30 June 2012 

• Engineering study to determine the size and location of a new substation and evaluation of 
primary feeder conductor size 

• Replace primary underground on ·south Vann Street and Marietta from 17th Street to 
Woodhaven 

• Build new primary feed on South Elliott Street from Southeast 29th Street to Southeast 49th 
Street 
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• Replace underground primary and secondary electric between Ridgewood and Grove Crest 

• Replace underground primary on Northeast 5th Street behind Gaither apartments 

• Build new service on Northwest 5th Street for new house and duplex 

• Replace underground primary in East Manor II and Gracemont 

• Replace primary and secondary electric on Brookfield Terrace and several cui-de-sacs 

UNAUDITED 
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CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

J1JNE 30, 201 1 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash $4,228,253 $ 1,549,068 
Investments 288,471 309,791 
Accrued interest 3,702 
Taxes receivable 1,071,561 75,954 
Accounts receivable (net) 1,721,609 
Accounts receivable from intra-government 1,868 522 
Due from grants 5,053 

Total current assets 5.595,206 3,660,646 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets: 

Cash, including time deposits 6,015,232 
Investments 4,294,000 
Taxes receivable 151,908 

Capital assets (net) 46,036,162 28,419,279 
Inventory 949,720 

Total noncurrent assets 46.036.162 39,830.139 

Total assets 51.631,368 43,490.785 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 116,060 1,033,434 
Accrued expenses 155,762 52,591 

Notes payable, current portion 493,615 
Payable to intra-government 2,390 
Refundable court deposits 19,510 
Accrued compensated absences 182,450 182,845 

Total current liabilities 473.782 1.764.875 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Customer deposits payable 836,362 
Notes and bonds payable, long-term portion 874615 

Total noncurrent liabilities I 710 977 

Total liabilities 473,782 3,475.852 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 46,036,162 27,051,089 
Restricted for: 
Capital projects and emergencies 1,326,954 9,534,201 
Debt service 1,024,586 
Other 840,024 90,577 

Unrestricted 1,929,860 3,339.066 

Total net assets $51 157.586 $40 Ql4 2JJ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement I 

Total 

$ 5,777,321 
598,262 

3,702 
I, 147,51 S 
1,721 ,609 

2,390 
s 053 

9,255.852 

6,015,232 
4,294,000 

I 51,908 
74,455,441 

949 720 

85.866.301 

95,122.153 

1,149,494 
208,353 
493,615 

2,390 
19,510 

365,295 

2,238.657 

836,362 
874,615 

1,710,977 

3.949,634 

73,087,251 

10,861,155 
1,024,586 

930,601 
5,268,926 

$21 112,St2 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges Grants and Grants and 
Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions 

Governmental activities 
General government 

Community Development Director $ 5l.,lt2 $ $ $ 
Planning and Zoning 2,757 
Mayor and Council 209,744 
City Clerk 181,861 
City Treasurer 20,170 
Maintenance Garage 53,183 

General Government 398,092 9 405 20,223 

Total general government 916,919 9 405 20,223 

Public safety and judiciary 
City Attorney 51,087 
Police 2,305,021 233,271 94,272 14,851 
Fire 1,118,478 18,326 4,398 
Civil Emergency Management 25,535 13,750 
Municipal Court 116,812 

Total public safety and 
judiciary 3,616,933 251,597 112,420 14 851 

Transportation 
Street 1,934,997 13.006 95,000 

Cultural, parks and recreation 
Library 346,110 6,348 23,119 
Cemetery 205,380 48,428 
Recreation 318,155 22,603 3,000 
Tourism 51,922 

Total cultural, parks and 
Recreation 921,567 77 379 26,119 

Total governmental activities 7,390,416 338,381 17 1 768 I 09,851 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement 2 

Net 
(Expense) 
Revenue 

$( 51,112) 
( 2,757) 
( 209,744) 
( 181,861) 
( 20,170) 
( 53, 183) 
( 368,464) 

887,291) 

( 51,087) 
(I ,962,627) 
(1,095,754) 
( 11,785) 
( 116,812) 

(3,238,065) 

( 1,826.99 I) 

3 16,643) 
156,952) 
292,552) 

51,922) 

( 818,069) 

(6,770,416) 



Statement 2 
Page2 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Business-type activities: 
Utilities 
Golf 
Recreation Center 

Total business-type activities 

Total 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Net (expense) /revenue 
General Revenues 

Taxes: 
Sales tax 
Use tax 
Alcohol beverage tax 
E-911 tax 
Hotel/motel tax 
Gasoline tax 
Motor vehicle tax 
Franchise ta'Ces 
Cigarette tax 
Utility Gr. Rev. tax 

Investment income 
Miscellaneous 
Capital transfers 
Transfers- internal activity 

Expenses 

12,461,729 
357,978 

1.033.565 

13,853,272 

$21 .243.688 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net assets, before contributed assets 
Contributed assets 

Change in net assets 

Net assets- beginning 

Net assets- ending 

Pro~:ram Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges Grants and Grants and 
Net 

(Expense) 
Revenue for Services Contributions Contributions 

12,797,861 
386,600 
390.912 

13,575,373 

$13.913 754 $ 171 768 $ 109 851 

336,132 
28,622 

642.653) 

277.899) 

$( 7 048 315) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$( 6,770.416) 

5,313,246 
308,598 

62,955 
40,461 
49,267 
17,196 
61 ,993 
87,304 
95,116 

3,546 
80,476 
49,580 

547,850 
( 2.509. 150) 

4,208,438 

( 2,561,978) 
223.000 

( 2,338,978) 

53.496.564 

$51.157 586 

$( 277,899) $( 7.048,315) 

1,312,811 6,626,057 
308,598 

62,955 
40,461 
49,267 
17,196 
61,993 
87,304 
95, 116 
3,546 

11 3,042 193,518 

( 547,850) 
2,509.150 

49,580 

3.387, 153 7.595.591 

3, I 09,254 547,276 
223.000 

3,109.254 770,276 

36.905.679 90.402,243 

$40 014 933 $91 172 519 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments 
Taxes receivable 
Due from other funds 
Grants receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 
Accrued compensated absences 
Refundable court bonds 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2011 

Street & 2002 GOB 
General Drainage Sinking 

Fund Fund Fund 

$ 956,799 $ 484,984 $ 872,678 
196,951 88,520 
641,663 218,240 151,908 

2,418 
5 053 

I 802 884 791 744 1 024 586 

69,592 18,128 
155,762 

522 
43,379 8,932 
19 510 

288.765 27.060 

762,674 1,024,586 
4,958 2,010 

I82,188 
1,326.973 

1.514.119 764 684 1.024.586 

$1 8Q2 884 $ 791 744 $1 024,~86 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 1,913,792 
3,000 

59,750 
2,390 

I 978 932 

28,340 

2,418 

30.758 

1,387,175 
15,119 

521 ,177 
24 703 

1948174 

$1 978 932 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement 3 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$4,228,253 
288,471 

1,071,561 
4,808 
5 053 

5 598 146 

116,060 
155,762 

2,940 
52,311 
J9.5IO 

346.583 

3,174,435 
22,087 

703,365 
1.351.676 

5.251.563 

$~ ~98 146 



Fund balance of governmental funds 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2011 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore 
are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of $24,058,4 11 

Portion of accrued compensated absences does not require current linancial resources. 
Therefore, $129,2 16 of total of $179,705 of accrued compensated absences is not 
reported as a liability in government funds balance sheet 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement 3 
Page 2 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 5,251,563 

46,036,162 

130,139) 

$51 !57 586 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANG ES IN FUND BAL ANCES 

GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Street & 2002 GOB Other 

Statement 4 

Total 
General Drainage Sinking Governmental Governmental 

F und F und F und F unds 

REVENUES 
Sales tax $ 3,019,465 $ 1, 137,769 $ 875,208 $ 
Other taxes 470,215 79,189 
Fines and forfeits 209,679 
Licenses and permits 9,405 
Franchise taxes 59,480 
Fees and services 65,735 
Interest 12,793 15,638 30,352 
Miscellaneous 42,912 8,512 
Grants and contributions 113.096 108.006 

Total revenues 4.002.780 1,349,114 905,560 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government: 
Community Development 51,112 
Planning and Zoning 2,757 
Mayor and Council 206,860 
City Clerk 172,989 
City Treasurer 20,170 
Maintenance Garage 50,662 
General Government 315,973 

Total general government 820.523 

Public safety and judiciary: 
City Attorney 51,087 
Police 2,058,888 
Fire 883,595 
Civil Emergency Management 17,629 
Municipal Court 116.600 

Total public safety and 
judiciary 3.127.799 

Transportation 
Street 839,567 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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280,804 
89,728 

27,824 
53,562 
2 1,693 

60 517 

534.128 

28.806 

28.806 

37,242 
44,736 

81 978 

Funds 

$5,313,246 
639,132 
209,679 

9,405 
87,304 

119,297 
80,476 
51,424 

281,619 

6.79l.S82 

51 , 112 
2,757 

206,860 
172,989 
20, 170 
50,662 

344 779 

849,329 

51,087 
2,096,130 

928,331 
17,629 

I 16.600 

3.209.777 

839,567 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Street & 2002 GOB Other 

Statement 4 
Page2 

Total 
General Drainage Sinking Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Cultural, parks and recreation 
Library 314,120 6,107 
Cemetery 182,888 
Recreation 252,668 3,327 
Tourism 51 922 

Total cultural, parks 
and recreation 749 676 61.356 

Debt service 
Principal 2,400,000 
Interest and other charges 85,257 

Capital outlay 990.272 480.826 

Total expenditures 4,697,998 1.829.839 2.485,257 652.966 

Excess (deficiency) 
of revenues over 
expenditures 695.218) 480.725) (I .579,697) 118.838) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 550,000 
Transfers out 26.043) 

Total other fi nancing 
sources (uses 550.000 26.043) 

Net change in fund balances 145,218) ( 480,725) (1,579,697) 144,881) 

Fund balances - beginning 1.659.337 1,245,409 2,604.283 2.093.055 

Fund balances- ending ~ 1 ~u ll2 $ 2ti4 ti84 $I 024 58ti ~I 2~a IZ~ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Funds 

320,227 
182,888 
255,995 

51.922 

811,032 

2,400,000 
85,257 

1,471.098 

9.666.060 

(2.874.478) 

550,000 
26.043) 

523.957 

(2,350,521) 

7,602,084 

$ ~ 25 1,5ti3 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

Statement 4 
Page 3 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Reconciliation of the change in fund balances- total government funds to the 
change in net assets of governmental activities 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental 
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life 
of the assets: 

Capital asset purchase capitalized 
Depreciation expense 
Donated capital assets 
Assets deleted 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not repo11ed as expenditures in 
governmental funds: 

Accrued compensated absences 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$(2.350.521) 

1,356,602 
(1,565,292) 

223,000 
1,844) 

12 466 

923) 

$(2 338 978) 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STAT EMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2011 

Business-ty[!e Activities - Entemrise .Funds 
Recreation Golf Course Municipal Util ity 

Center Fund De[!artment 
ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash $ 384,959 $ I 14,448 $ 1,049,661 
Cash investments 309,791 
Taxes receivable 75,954 
Accounts receivable 1,721,609 
Interest receivable 3,702 
Due from other funds 522 

Total current assets 770 704 114 448 2.775.494 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 6,015,232 
Investments 4,294,000 
Taxes receivable 151 ,908 

Inventory 949,720 
Capital assets (net) 6.041,163 796 920 2L58l 196 

Total noncurrent assets 6 041,163 726,220 32,992,056 

Total assets $6811867 ~ 911,368 ~35 767 550 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 22,730 12,760 997,944 
Accrued expenses 3,265 49,326 
Accrued compensated absences 5,275 136 177,434 
Due other funds 2,390 
Current portion oflong-term debt 408 161 85 454 

Total current liabi lities 436,166 101 615 I 227,094 

Non-current liabilities 
Notes and bonds payable, less current portion 804,642 69,973 
Customers' meter deposits 
(payable from restricted assets) 836,362 

Total non-current liabi lities 804,642 69 973 836 362 

Total liabilities 1,240 808 171 588 2,063.456 

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 4,828,400 641,493 21,581 ,196 

Restricted: 
Sales tax reserved for capital improvements 7,226,073 
Charter required legal obligations 90,577 
Property, plant and equipment 

and emergency and disaster 2,308,128 
Unrestricted: 742 659 98,287 2.498,120 

Total net assets $ 5 571 059 ~ 2J2 ZSQ $33 :ZQ1 Q24 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement 5 

Total 

$ 1,549,068 
309,791 

75,954 
1,721,609 

3,702 
522 

3,660,646 

6,015,232 
4,294,000 

151,908 
949,720 

28.419.279 

39,830,139 

~43,490,785 

1,033,434 
52,591 

182,845 
2,390 

493 615 

1,764,875 

874,615 

836,362 

I 710977 

3,475,852 

27,05 1,089 

7,226,073 
90,577 

2,308,128 
3,339,066 
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CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Business-tv12e Activities - EnterQrise Funds 
Recreation Golf Course Municipal Utility 

Center Fund DeQartment 
Operating revenues 

Utility charges $ $ $12,497,315 
Utility taps 28,470 
Penalties 152,534 
Miscellaneous 1,035 119,542 
Fee income 390,912 385,565 

Total operating revenues 390,912 386,600 12,797,861 

Operating expenses 
Purchased utilities 8,435,399 
Personnel services 352,132 101,007 2,043,319 
Personnel benefits 69,294 28,284 745,746 
Materials and supplies 23,465 285,256 
Other expenses 260,800 159,812 529, 116 
Bad debts expense 40,984 
Depreciation expense 241,790 59,681 769,068 

Less: expenses capitalized 420,755) 

Total operating expense 947,481 348,784 12,428,133 

Net operating income (loss) 556,569) 37,816 369,728 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Gain (loss) on asset disposal 33,596) 
Sales tax revenue 437,604 875,207 
Investment income 5,495 1,002 106,545 
Interest expense 86.084) 9.194) 

Total nonoperating revenue 
(expenses) 357,015 8,192) 948,156 

Net income (loss) before contributions 
and transfers ( 199,554) 29,624 1,317,884 

Operating transfers in (out) 2,150 ( 550,000) 
Capital transfers 2,509,150 

Change in net assets 2,311,746 29,624 767,884 

Net assets- beginning of year 3,259,313 710,156 32,936,210 

Net assets- end of year ~ ~ ~ZI ~~2 $ 232,280 $ JJ 7Q4 Q24 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement 6 

Total 

$ 12,497,315 
28,470 

152,534 
120,577 
776 477 

13,575,373 

8,435,399 
2,496,458 

843,324 
308,721 
949,728 

40,984 
1,070,539 

( 420,755) 

13,724,398 

( 149,025) 

( 33,596) 
1,312,811 

113,042 
95,278) 

1,296,979 

1,147,954 
( 547,850) 

2,509,150 

3,109,254 

36,905,679 
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CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Business-!Yge Activities - Entergrise Funds 
Recreation Golf Course Municipal Utility 

Center Fund Degartment 
Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers $ 390,912 $ 386,600 $ 12,678,259 
Payments to suppliers ( 301,872) ( 161 ,819) ( 9,960,360) 
Payments to employees and benefits ( 425,925) ( 131,609) ( 2,041,090) 
Payments capitalized 420,755 
Receipts over refunds of customer 

meter deposits 14 894 

Net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities ( 336.885) 93.172 I, l12,458 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Operating subsidies and transfers to 
other funds 2,150 550,000) 
Repayment from other funds I 066 

Net cash provided (used) by 
noncapital financing activities 3 216 550,000) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Sales tax receipts 434,288 868,574 
Purchases of capital assets 9,400) ( 1,469,283) 
Repayment of long-term debt 81 ,300) 
Interest on long-term debt 10.590) 

Net cash provided (used) by 
capital and related financing 
activities 434.288 ( 101.290) 600.?09) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Proceeds from sales (purchases) 
of investments 99,846 541,447 

Interest and dividends 5 495 1,002 106.859 

Net cash provided (used) 
by investing activities 105,341 1,002 648,306 

Net increase (decrease) in 
cash and cash equivalents 205,960 7,116) 610,055 

Cash balances- beginning of the year 178 999 121,564 6.454.838 

Cash balances - end of the year $ 384.959 $ 114 448 $7 064 893 

Cash, including time deposits 384,959 114,448 1,049,661 
Restricted cash, including time deposits 6,015,232 

Total cash and cash equivalents, 
end ofyear ~ J~4 2~2 $ 114448 $ 7 Q64 893 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement 7 

Total 

$ 13,455,771 
(10,424,051) 
( 2,598,624) 

420,755 

14 894 

868.745 

547,850) 
I 066 

546.784) 

1,302,862 
( I ,478,683) 
( 81,300) 
( 10,590) 

267.711) 

641 ,293 
113.356 

754 649 

808,899 

6,755,401 

$7.564.300 

1,549,068 
6.015,232 
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CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Business-type Activities -Enterprise Funds 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided (used by operating activities) 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 

Cash flows reported in other 
categories: 

Depreciation expense 
Bad debt expense 

Change in assets and liabilities 
Receivables, net 

Inventories 
Accounts and other payables 
Customer meter deposits 

payable 
Accrued expenses 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: 

Recreation 
Center 

$( 556,569) 

241,790 

17,607) 

4,499) 

$( 336.885) 

GolfCourse Municipal Utility 
Fund Department 

$ 37,816 $ 369,728 

59,681 769,068 
40,984 

160,586) 
75,893) 

2,007) 152,034 

14,894 
2.318) 2,229 

$ 93 172 ~ l ll·4~~ 

Statement 7 
Page2 

$( 149,025) 

1,070,539 
40,984 

160,586) 
75,893) 

132,420 

14,894 
4,588) 

$ a~a z~~ 

The Municipal Utility Department wrote off assets with a cost of $239,703 and accumulated depreciation of $206, 106 that 
Was replaced or scrapped per department policy. The result was a loss on asset disposal of$33,597 for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 20 II. 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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NOTE 1. 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2011 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Pryor Creek was created in 1871 and operates under a strong Mayor/Council fonn of 
government. The City's major operations include public safety, (Police, fire and civil defense), 
recreation, parks and library, provision and maintenance of streets and drainage, utility service 
(electric, gas, water and sewer), and general administrative services. In addition, the City 
exercises sufficient control over other governmental agencies that are included as part of the 
City's reporting entity. 

The City complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes all 
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. In the 
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the proprietary funds, 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied unless those 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB 
prevails. For enterprise funds, GASB Statement Nos. 20 and 34 provide the City the option of 
electing to apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. The City has elected 
not to apply those pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework and the more 
significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note. The City 
was required to implement the new financial reporting requirements of GASB Statement Nos. 33 
and 34 for the year ended June 30, 2003. Effective for the year ended June 30,2006, the City is 
reporting all infrastructure. See Notes 3.D and 3.J. 

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

The City's financial reporting entity comprises the following: 

Primary Government: City of Pryor Creek 

Blended Component Unit: Pryor Public Works Authority 

Blended Other Units County Wide Fire Department Fund 

In detennining the financial reporting entity, The City complies with the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," and includes all component units of 
which the City appointed a voting majority of the units' board; the City is either able to 
impose its will on the unit or a financial benefit or burden relationship exists. 
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Blended Component Unit 

A blended component unit is a separate legal entity that meets the component unit criteria 
described above and whose governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City 
Council or the component unit provides services entirely to the City. The component unit's 
funds are blended into those of the City's by appropriate activity type to compose the primary 
government presentation. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit 
criteria described above but do not meet the criteria for blending. Currently, the City has no 
discretely presented component units. 

Blended Component Unit 

Component Unit 

Pryor Public Works 
Authority 

Blended Other Units 

Brief Description/Inclusion Criteria 

While dormant for many years, the 
Authority was reactivated approximately 
20 years ago for the purpose of entering 
into a long-term contract providing the 
citizens of Pryor Creek with trash services. 
Its major source of income is franchise fees 
from such contract 

Reporting 

Special Revenues 

A countywide sales tax was passed, effective January 1, 2003, for the purpose of providing 
revenues to the various fire departments of Mayes County. The sales tax receipts, which 
began in March, 2003 and are equally divided among the fire departments, is administered by 
the County which maintains a fund for each fire department, including that of the City of 
Pryor Creek. Purchases against the funds can only be initiated by each fire department, 
sometimes requiring its governing board approval. 

Other Units by Reference 

The Pryor Creek Economic Development Authority is included in this report. However, 
since the Authority has no assets, liabilities (only non-commitment debt to the City and the 
Authority), revenues or expenditures, it is included only by reference and explanation in the 
notes to the financial statements. The original amount of the debt was $2,356,000. 
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l.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities display information about the 
reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity. The 
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees 
charged to external parties for goods or services. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are organized into two major categories: 
governmental and proprietary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the 
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary 
operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for 
all funds of that category or type; and 

b. total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses ofthe individual 
governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total 
for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. 

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and always classified as a major 
fund. It is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to 
be accounting for in other funds. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that 
are either legally or council restricted to expenditures for certain purposes. 
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Capital Project Funds 

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or 
construction of specific capital projects or items. All capital project funds were created by 
Council action and derive their revenues as a result of Council action. Accordingly, the City 
Council can change or eliminate these funds by vote. 

Debt Service Fund 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment 
of interest and principle on the general long-term debt of the City other than debt service 
payments made by other funds. This fund receives revenues from a 1/2 cent sales tax until the 
general obligation bonds are fully paid. Although not anticipated, the City may assess a 
property tax if such sales tax is insufficient. 

Proprietary Fund 

Enterprise Fund 

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. 
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial 
activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the private sector. The Municipal 
Utility Department, Golf Course Fund and the Recreation Center constitute the enterprise 
funds. 

Major and Non major Funds 

The funds are further classified as major or non major as follows: 

Fund 

Major: 

General 

Special Revenue Fund 
Street & Drainage 

2002 GOB Sinking Fund 

Brief Description 

See above for description 

Accounts for revenues and expenditures of 
maintaining, improving and extending streets 
and drainage 

Accounts for sales tax revenues and debt 
service expenditures 
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Proprietary Fund: 
Municipal Utility Board 

Recreation Center 
Cash Fund 

Golf Course Fund 

Non major: 
Special Revenue Funds: 

E-911 

Countywide Fire 
Department 

Cemetery Care 

Cemetery Care 
Interest Fund 

Seizures 

Library 

Donations and 
Earmarked Monies 

Public Works Authority 

Hotel and Motel Tax 

Accounts for activities of providing electric, water, 
wastewater, and ,gas services to the public. See below for 
pertinent information pertaining to this fund including the 
dedication of revenues. 

Charges for membership and services for use of the facilities 
and personnel in addition to receiving V4 of 1 cent sales tax. 
The facility opened in March, 2009. This fund was reported 
as a special revenue fund in the prior year. 

Accounts for revenues and expenses of municipally run 
course. 

Accounts for revenues and expenditures ofE-911 service 
that is legally restricted for public safety use. 

See above for description. 

Accounts for 25 percent of cemetery revenue restricted by 
State law for cemetery capital improvements. 

Interest on cemetery care fund designated for cemetery 
operations. 

Police seizures for use of police department. 

Accounts for grants and contributions specifically for the 
library. 

Accounts for donations and grants for specific projects or 
specific purposes. 

See above for description. 

Accounts for revenues of hotel/motel tax restricted by 
local ordinance for the promotion of conventions and 
tourism. 
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Fee-in-Lieu 

Debt Service Fund 

Capital Project Funds: 

Capital Outlay 

Capital Outlay 
Reserve 

Real Property 
Acquisition 

Library Building 

Accounts for funds deposited with the City by third parties 
for drainage projects caused by real estate development. 

See above for description. 

Accounts for 118 of one cent sales tax dedicated for 
capital outlay. Cannot be changed without a vote of the 
people. Additionally, the Council voted to allocate the use 
tax from the Capital Outlay Fund to the General Fund for the 
entire year ending June 30,2010 and beyond. 

Although initially set up to fund the purchase of a fire truck 
in 2000, it has now essentially become a capital outlay fund 
for the fire department. Revenues consist of outside fire 
runs, fire subscriptions and grants for the fire department. 

Created by the Council to accumulate funds for additions 
and improvements to land and buildings. The Council voted 
to allocate 1/10 of 1 cent sales tax to this fund from the 
General Fund for the entire year ending June 30,2010 and 
beyond. 

Accounts for donations to add on to the existing library. 

The Municipal Utility Department was created by the Charter for the City of Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma in January, 1951. The Department operates under the Utility Board consisting 
of five members. Vacancies in the membership of the Utility Board are filled by 
appointment by the remaining members of the Board subject to the approval of the City 
Council. The Department's operations consist of providing electrical, gas, water and 
sewage disposal service to the citizens of the City of Pryor Creek. All revenues received 
are dedicated by Charter as follows: 

First, revenues are to be used for the payment of operating expenses, expenses 
incidental to the running of new services and the installation of new meters without 
major extension of lines, cost of minor extensions of lines and cost of replacements 
due to obsolescence. 

Secondly, the Board is authorized to set aside, out of its revenues (reduced by 
encumbrances), a reserve for depreciation, replacement of obsolete or worn out 
property, machinery and equipment and to provide an emergency fund in cases of 
destruction or injury to utility properties. However, the funding for such reserve 
cannot exceed 20 percent of the net profits of the Utility Department for the year. 
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Third, after application of the foregoing, any surplus revenues shall be applied first to 
the current interest and accruals in the sinking fund of the City of Pryor Creek and 
thereafter transferred to the general fund of the City of Pryor Creek. 

Legal counsel has ruled that if sufficient funding is otherwise available for the sinking 
fund, then such surplus revenues may go directly to the general fund. 

l.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both 
governmental and businesslike activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus as defined in item b. below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the 
"economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. 
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance 
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their 
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus, except for 
sales tax revenues which are recognized on a "current financial resources" 
measurement by the Municipal Utility Department. The accounting objectives of this 
measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets 
(or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities 
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. 
Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets. 

Basis of Accounting 

The City implemented a new financial reporting model, as required by the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements- and Management's Discussion and 
Analysis- for State and Local Governments, as of June 30, 2003. Beginning with the year 
ended June 30, 2006, all infrastructure is reflected on the Statement of Net Assets. Prior to 
then only additions to infrastructure for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were 
reflected on such statements. See Notes 3.D and 3.J pertaining to the capitalization of 
infrastructure in the current year. 
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In the government-wide Statement ofNet Assets and Statement of Activities, both 
governmenta l and businesslike activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place. Specifically taxes received in July and August 
after the year end are accrued when such taxes pertain to the period being reported. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are also presented on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when "measurable and available". Licenses and permits, fines and forfeits, and 
miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash. Sales and other 
taxes, franchise taxes, grants and investment earnings are recorded when earned. Grant 
receivables are recognized when expenditures are incurred that are to be reimbursed. 
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if 
measurable, except expenditures for debt services, prepaid expenses, and other long-term 
obligations which are recognized when paid. 

Proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the 
liability is incurred or economic asset used. 

Budget Basis of Accounting 

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for the governmental 
funds of the City. Annual operating budgets are adopted each fiscal year for most funds. The 
basis of accounting for budgetary purposes for all funds is the modified accrual, i.e., revenues 
are recognized when received and expenditures are recognized when encumbered. The 
Enterprises Funds of the golf course and Municipal Utility Department also adopt budgets 
and revenues are recognized when earned and billed and expenditures are recognized when 
incurred. 

The budget method authorized by Oklahoma Statute adopted by the City for its general fund 
places a limit on the amount that can be budgeted. The amount to be budgeted for the next 
fiscal year is the unreserved fund balance at the end of the fiscal year plus 90% of its 
revenues for the year just ended. However, the Municipal Utility Department, an Enterprise 
Fund, annually budgets an amount to remit to the City's general fund. The budgeted amount, 
not 90% of the amounted remitted for the year then ended, is utilized in preparing the general 
fund's budget. All unencumbered budget appropriations, except project budgets, lapse at the 
end of each fiscal year. 
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l.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY 

Investments 

Investments at June 30, 2011 consist of the following: 

Municipal Utility Department 
CD's with maturity dates greater than three months, but less 
than one year, with interest rates ranging from 1.30% to 4.00% 

General Fund 
CD's with maturity dates of two years 
with interest rates ranging from 1.39% to 1.85% 

Street and Drainage 
CD's with maturity dates of two years 
with interest rates ranging from 1.65% to 1.80% 

Library Cash Fund 
CD with a maturity date of five years at 
2.96% interest 

Recreation Center Cash Fund 
CD's with maturity dates of two years 
with interest rates ranging from 1.10% to 1.15% 

Grand Total 

Investments on the balance sheet are reflected as: 
Current assets 
Restricted assets 

$4.294.000 

196.951 

88,520 

3.000 

309.791 

$4.892.262 

$ 598,262 
4.294,000 

$4.892,262 

Additional cash and investment disclosures are presented in Notes 2.C. and 3.A. 

Interfuod Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that 
may result in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type 
transactions are classified as "due to and from other funds." See Note 3.1. for details of 
interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year end. 
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Receivables 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and 
not yet received. 

The Municipal Utility Department is the only fund that has receivables that are essentially 
subject to bad debts. An allowance for uncollectible accounts has not been established, as is 
more fully explained in Note 3.C. Such receivables consist of utility charges to customers. 
The other proprietary fund, the golf course, has no receivables. 

Inventories 

The Municipal Utility Department is the only fund that has inventory in the financial 
statements. Such inventory is generally for repairs and improvements to the system and is 
classified as a noncurrent asset. 

Fixed Assets 

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (fixed assets) depends on 
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations 
and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide statements 

In the government-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capital assets. 
All fixed assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is 
unavailable, except for donated fixed assets which hare recorded at their estimated fair value 
at the date of donation. 

As of June 30, 2006 and later years, the governmental funds' infrastructure assets have been 
capitalized. Up to then, infrastructure was capitalized on prospective basis for the years 
ending June 30, 2003, 2004 and 2005. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement ofNet 
Assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Utility System 
Infrastructure 
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Governmental 

25 -50 years 
3-20 years 
25- 50 years 
13- 160 years 

Proprietary 

20-40 years 
5- 10 years 
7- 100 years 



Because certain system additions for the Municipal Utility Department are actually 
replacements of old system assets, an estimate has been made to reduce the value of the 
system by the amount of the replaced assets. An estimate of 40% of current year utility 
system additions are removed, along with applicable accumulated deprecation, from 
appropriate utility system accounts (gas, electric, water, sewer). The oldest assets recorded 
are the first retired. 

Fund Financial Statements 

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in governmental fund operations are 
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. 
Fixed assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the 
government-wide statements. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include cash and investments of the proprietary fund that are legally 
restricted as to their use. The primary restricted assets are related to charter and third party 
required reserves and utility meter deposits. 

Long-term Debt 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in 
the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported 
as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consist primarily of 
bonds and leases payable, accrued compensated absences, and customer meter deposits. 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial 
statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of 
principle and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund is the 
same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 

Compensated Absences 

The City's policies regarding vacation and other compensated time off permit employees to 
accumulate earned but unused time off. The liability for these compensated absences is 
recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide statements. The current portion of this 
debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial statements, governmental 
funds report only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available 
financial resources, whi le the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred. 
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Equity Classifications 

Government-wide Statements 

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components: 

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of capital assets including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either 
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

The Municipal Utility Department requires meter deposits for utility services. Such 
deposits are retained until services are discontinued. At that time, the deposits are 
applied first to any outstanding balances owed by the customers and the excess, if 
any, is refunded. No interest is paid on the deposits. 

c. Assigned net assets - All net assets that do not meet any of the definitions and are for 
a specific purpose 

d. Unassigned - All net assets that do not meet any of the definitions and can be used for 
any purposes. Represents the net assets of the General Fund. 

e. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets of business-type activities that do not 
meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

Fund Statements 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as 
assigned and unassigned, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated. 
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements. See 
Note 3.G. for additional disclosures. 

l.E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES 

Sales Tax 

The City levies a 3.75 cent sales tax. The sales tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax 
Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission. 
The Tax Commission receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection by 
vendors. The sales tax is allocated to the various funds by ordinance: 
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General Fund 
Street and Drainage 
Municipal Utility Department 
Capital Outlay 
Recreation Center Cash Fund 
Sinking Fund - Recreation Center 
Real Property Acquisition Fund 

Through 
11/30/2008 

1.625 
.650 

.500 

.125 

.250 

.500 

.100 

.1.15i2 cent 

Effective 
12/01/2009 

1.725 
.650 
.500 
.125 
.250 
.500 
.00 

1.15.Q. cent 

The .1 cent sales tax received by the Real Property Acquisition Fund was allocated to the 
General Fund effective for sales tax earned in December 2009 and received in February, 
2010. This is the only portion of the sales tax that the ordinance allows to be allocated by the 
Council. This was done due to decreased sales tax in the General Fund due to the downturn 
in the economy. 

The sales tax is recorded in the various funds with the exception of the sales tax for the 
Municipal Utility Department which is recorded in the General Fund and transferred to the 
Municipal Utility Department. The sales tax in the Municipal Utility Department is restricted 
as discussed in Note 3.1. 

The 1/2 cent sales tax for the Sinking Fund for the purpose of paying off bonds of the 
Recreation Center was changed after the year end. The debt was paid off in November, 2011; 
however, a vote of the people extended the sales tax for the purpose of funding a new City 
Hall, street projects and improvements to the Recreation Center. The sales tax was extended 
for the shorter of 15 years or when the new bonds are retired. 

Use Tax 

The City levies a 3.75 use tax on personal property purchased outside the city limits but 
stored, used, or consumed within the city. The use tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax 
Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission, 
which is one month after the tax is received from the vendors. Effective for use tax earned in 
December 2009 and received in February, 2010, the use tax was allocated to the General 
Fund rather than the Capital Outlay Fund due to the downturn in the economy. 
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Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and 
expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing 
activities. 

Expenditures/Expenses 

In the government-wide fmancial statements, expenses are classified by function for both 
governmental and business-type activities: 

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows: 

Governmental Funds - By Character Current (further classified by function) 
Debt Service 
Capital Outlay 

Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperating 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial 
resources. Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

Interfund Transfers 

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as 
interfund transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers 
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 

NOTE2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various 
federal, state, and local laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City of Pryor Creek's 
compliance with significant laws and regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City 
resources follows. 
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2.A. FUND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS 

The City complies with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the use of separate 
funds. The legally required funds used by the City include the following: 

Fund Required By 

State Law Cemetery Care Fund 
Municipal Utility Department 
Street and Drainage 
Public Works Authority 

City Charter 
State Law 
Trust Indenture 

2.B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

In accordance with state law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial 
institutions must be secured with acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or par. 
Acceptable collateral includes certain U.S. Government or Government Agency securities, 
certain State of Oklahoma or political subdivision debt obligations, or surety bonds. As 
required by 12 U.S.C.A. Section 1823 (e), all financial institutions pledging collateral to the 
City must have a written collateral agreement approved by the board of directors or loan 
committee. 

2.C. REVENUE RESTRICTIONS 

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local 
requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include: 

Revenue Source 
Sales Tax 
Gasoline Excise & Commercial Vehicle Tax 
E-911 revenue 
Water, Sewer, Electrical, and Gas Revenue 
Cemetery Revenue (15%) 
Hotel/Motel Tax 
Golf Revenue 
Recreation Center Revenues 

Legal Restrictions of Use 
See Notes I.E. and 3 .J. 
Street and Alley Purposes 
E-911 Emergency Services Purposes. 
Debt Service & Utility Operations 
Cemetery Capital Improvements 
Convention and Tourism 
Golf Operations and Maintenance 
Recreation Center Operations and 
Maintenance 

For the year ended June 30, 2011 , the City complied, in all material respects, with these 
revenue restrictions. 
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2.D. DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS 

General Obligation Debt 

Article 10, Sections 26 and 27, for the Oklahoma Constitution limits the amount of 
outstanding general obligation bonded debt of the municipality for nonutility or nonstreet 
purposes to no more than 10 percent of net assessed valuation. For the year ended June 30, 
201 1, the City complied with this provision. 

Other Long-term Debt 

Except as noted in the preceding paragraph, as required by the Oklahoma State Constitution, 
the City (excluding Public Trusts) may not incur any indebtedness that would require 
payment from resources beyond the current fiscal year revenue without first obtaining voter 
approval. For the year ended June 30, 201 1, the City incurred no such indebtedness. 

2.E. FUND EQUITY RESTRICTIONS 

Deficit Prohibition 

Title 11, Section 17-21 1, of the Oklahoma Statutes prohibits the creation of a deficit fund 
balance in any individual fund. The City of Pryor Creek complied with this statute in all 
material respects for the year ended June 30, 2011. 

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS 

The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the basic 
financial statements for its various assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. 

3.A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 

The City's policies regarding deposits of cash are discussed in Note l.E. The table presented 
below is designed to disclose the level of custody credit risk assumed by the City based upon 
how its deposits were insured or secured with collateral at June 30, 2011. The categories of 
credit risk are defined as follows: 

Category 1 - Insured by FDIC or collateralized with securities held by the City (or public 
trust) or by its agent in its name 

Category 2 - Uninsured but collateralized with securities held by the pledging fmancial 
institution's trust department or agent in the City's name 
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Category 3 -Uninsured and uncollateralized; or collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City's name; or 
collateralized with no written or approved collateral agreement 

Type ofDeposits 

Total Deposits 

Total Bank 
Balance 

$16 747 076 $ 5 535 373 

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Assets: 
Unrestricted cash 
Time deposits 
Restricted cash, including time deposits 

Investments 

Credit Rjsk Cateeory 

$!! 21 I 703 $ 

Total 
Carrying 

v alue 

$16 684&15 

$ 5,777,321 
598,262 

10 309 232 

$(6 684 815 

Investments consisted of short term (two years or less) certificates of deposit with interest 
rates ranging from .60% to 4.00%. 

3.B. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted assets consist of cash, certificates of deposit, investments, and taxes receivable 
reserved as follows: 

Customer meter deposits - reflected as a long-term liability 
on the balance sheet 

Reserve for property, plant and equipment replacements and 
emergency and disaster relief- reflected as a reservation of 
retained earnings on the balance sheet 

Sales tax allocated for capital improvements 

Reserved for charter required legal obligations 

$ 836,362 

2,308,128 

7,226,073 

90 577 

$10,461.140 

Encumbrances are recognized as a reserve on the Municipal Utility Department, a 
proprietary type fund due to the City Charter's definition and allocation of such fund's 
computation and distribution of surplus revenues between the General Fund and the reserves 
of the Municipal Utility Department. See Note 3.J. for additional information. 
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3.C. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist of utilities receivable. Accounts 
receivable of the governmental activities consist of grants receivable. 

Accounts receivable of the Municipal Utility Department are reported at their gross value without 
an allowance for doubtful accounts. All accounts have utility deposits with the Department 
which can be applied to any unpaid balances. Management feels that such deposits will cover 
most accounts that might become uncollectible. Accordingly, no allowance for uncollectible 
accounts has been established. The following is a summary of the bad debts for the current and 
prior four fiscal years: 

June 30, 201 1 
June 30, 2010 
June 30, 2009 
June 30, 2008 
June 30, 2007 

3.D. CAPITAL ASSETS 

$40,984 
$46,024 
$33,719 
$39,633 
$56,713 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 , was as follows: 

Balance at 
July 1, 2010 Additions Disposals Transfers 

Governmental activities: 
Land $ 1,885,610 $ 173,000 $ $ 
Buildings 2,767,068 292,380 29,300 
Machinery and equipment 6,512,774 217,899 68,982) 
Infrastructure 

Improvements 50,319,093 848,602 7,651 
Land, easements, etc. 7,045,000 

Work in progress 54 408 47 721 36,951) 

Totals at historical cost 68,583,953 1.579.602 68.982) 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Buildings ( 1,726,763) 64,895) 
Machinery and equipment ( 3,544,814) 514,422) 67,138 
Infrastructure (17,288,680) 985.975) 

Total accumulated depreciation (22.560.257) ( 1 ,565,292) 67 138 

Governmental activities capital 
Assets, net ~ 4~ Q'J ~2~ ~ I~ JIQ $( I 844) $ 

Business-type activities: 
Land and easements 395,426 
Buildings 7,540,509 
Machinery and equipment 3,461 ,224 84,945 ( 71,401) 
Util ity property 30,394,414 1,409,029 ( 168,302) 
Work in progress 18 018 

Totals at historical cost 41.809.591 1.493.974 ( 239.703) 
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Balance at 
J une 30, 2011 

$2,058,610 
3,088,748 
6,661,691 

51,175,346 
7,045,000 

65 178 

70.094.573 

( 1,791 ,658) 
( 3,992,098) 
(18,274.655) 

(24,058,411) 

~ ~~ QJ(,i 162 

395,426 
7,540,509 
3,474,768 

31 ,635, 141 
18 018 

43.063.862 



Balance at 
July 1, 2010 Additions Disposals 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings ( 1,069,717) ( 188,735) 
Machinery and equipment ( 2,209,204) ( 221,465) 71,401 
Utility property (I 0.501 .229) ( 660,339) 134 705 

Total accumulated depreciation (13,780,150) ( 1,070.539) 206.106 

Business-type capital assets, net $28 029,441 $ 423 435 $( ~~ ~2Z) 

* Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

General government: 
City Clerk 
Maintenance Garage 
General government 

Mayor's office 

Total general government 

Public safety and judiciary: 
Police 
Fire 
Civil emergency management 
Municipal Court 

Total public safety and judiciary 

Transportation: 
Streets 

Total transportation 

Cultural, parks and recreation: 
Library 
Cemetery 
Swimming pool and parks 

Total cultural, parks and recreation 

Total depreciation expense 

E. INVENTORY 

T ransfers 

~ 

Balance at 
June 30, 2011 

( 1,258,452) 
( 2,359,268) 
( 11 .026.863) 

( 14.644.583) 

$ 28,112,279 

$ 6,567 
1,793 

12,034 
2487 

22.881 

205,393 
194,805 

5,630 
212 

406.040 

1,045,572 

1,045,572 

23,381 
20,638 
46 780 

90 799 

$1 565 292 

Inventory consists of utility materials and supplies that will be expensed when used for repairs 
and/or capitalized when used for improvements. The Department maintains such inventories for 
ordinary and emergency repairs and improvements and many of the items are in the nature of a 
back-up to parts of the utility system. Thus, many of the inventory items will not be used in the 
next fiscal year. Accordingly, inventory has not been classified as a current asset. 

Inventory is stated at cost on a first-in, first-out basis. 
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3.F. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Payables in all funds are composed of payables to vendors only. Accrued expenses consist 
mainly of accrued payroll. 

3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The reporting entity's long-tenn debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from 
governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities. 

Governmental Activities 

The following is a summary of the City's (excluding Proprietary Funds) long-term debt 
transactions for the year ended June 30, 2011: 

Debt outstanding, July I, 201 0 
Additions 
Retirements 

Debt outstanding, June 30, 2011 

The provisions of such debt at June 30, 2011 are as follows: 

General obligation bonds dated January 1, 2003 in 
the original amount of$6,000,000. Principal payable 
in annual installments of $400,000 beginning 
January 1, 2006 with a final payment of $800,000 
due January 1, 2018. Interest is payable semiannually 
beginning July 1, 2004 with an effective rate of interest 
of3.998507. The bonds are to be paid from a 1/2 cent 
sales tax which expires when there are sufficient funds 
to retire the debt 

Lease/purchase of exercise equipment for the Pryor 
Recreation Center in the original amount of$23,757 
payable in monthly installments of$716.85 including 
interest at 4.85% 

Totals 

Amount due in one year 

Long term portion 

56 

$3,620,578 

( 2,407,775) 

$ 1.212.803 

Total Due Within 
Debt One Year 

$1,200,000 $ 400,000 

$ 12,803 $ 8,161 

$1,212,803 $ 408.161 

408,161 

$ 804.642 



The general obligation bonds are listed here as a governmental debt as they are being paid out 
of the 2002 GOB Sinking Fund per the governing documents. However, the debt is reported 
in the Recreation Center which is now classified as a business-type activity. Likewise, the 
lease purchase debt is reported in the Recreation Center, but the debt is being paid out of the 
Capital Outlay Fund, a governmental fund. Accordingly, the debts are presented as 
business-type debts on statements 1 and 5 of the financial statements. 

The following is a summary of payments due for the next two years: 

Year ending June 30, 2012 
Year ending June 30, 2013 

Interest 

$ 48,441 
$ 16,172 

Principal 

$ 408,161 
$ 804,642 

However, the City paid $2,000,000 of the general obligation bond in advance in November, 
2010 and the balance of$1,200,000 was paid in November, 2011. 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

The following is a summary of the Golf Course long-term debt transactions for the year 
ended June 30, 2011: 

Debt outstanding July 1, 2010 
Additions 
Retirements 

Debt outstanding June 30, 2011 

The provision of such debt at June 30, 2011 is as follows: 

Lease/purchase on golf carts in October, 2008 in the 
original amount of$155,024. Payable in monthly 
installments of$3,546.50 including 5.9% interest 

Lease/purchase on golf irrigation system in the original 
Amount of$300,000. Payable in annual payments of 
$49,332.30 including 4.26% interest 

Totals 

Amount due in one year 

Long-term portion 

57 

$ 236,727 

( 81,300) 

$ 155,427 

Total Due Within 
Debt One Year 

$ 54,437 $40,424 

100,990 45,030 

155,427 $ 85.454 

85,454 

$ 69.973 



The following is a summary of payments until maturity: 

Year ending June 30, 2012 
Year ending June 30, 2013 
Year ending June 30, 2014 

Interest 

$ 6,436 
$ 2,557 
$ 384 

Principal 

$ 85,454 
$60,961 
$ 9,012 

Long-term debt of the Municipal Utility Department consists of customer meter deposits. 

Cash has been reserved in an amount equal to customer meter deposits, which are refundable 
only when services are terminated. The meter deposits are not interest bearing. 

Non-Commitment Debt 

The notes and bonds payable comprising the Pryor Creek Economic Development Authority's 
indebtedness are not indebtedness of the State of Oklahoma, nor of the City of Pryor Creek, 
nor are they personal obligations of the Pryor Creek Economic Development Authority, but 
are obligations of the Authority payable solely from the Trust Estate consisting of the 
Authority notes and related Financing Agreements and other security outlined in the 
Mortgage or Bond indentures. 

This debt is considered non-commitment debt to the City and Authority since the debt 
payments are made solely from the notes receivable or financing agreement proceeds from 
industrial occupants. Payments are made directly by the industrial occupants to trustee banks 
who pay the bondholders. In the event of default by the industrial occupants, the City or 
Authority has no obligation, in substance, to make any payments on the debt since the notes 
receivable ,financing agreements and mortgages on the property with the industrial occupant 
are the only security for the debt. 

As a result of the non-commitment determination, the Authority's indebtedness and related 
receivables from industrial occupants are not recorded in the financial statements. 

3.H ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

City employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of 
employment. This liability is reflected in the balance sheet of the proprietary funds. 
Additionally, the full amount of the accrual is included in the Street and Drainage Special 
Revenue Fund, as that fund appears to have sufficient expendable available financial 
resources to liquidate the obligation. 

The accrued compensated absences for the General Fund totals $173,518. Due to its limited 
expendable available financial resources, only $43,379 of this amount has been included as a 
liability in the General Fund in the Fund financial statements However, the $173,518 is 
reflected as a liability on the government-wide statements. 
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3.I. DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS­
OPERATING AND CAPITAL TRANSFERS 

As of June 30, 2011, interfund receivables and payables which resulted from various 
interfund transactions were as follows: 

General Fund 
Public Works Authority 
Municipal Utility Department 
E-911 Fund 

Due From 
Other Funds 

$ 2,418 
2,390 

522 

Due to 
Other Funds 

$ 522 

2,390 
2,418 

$ 5.330 

Operating transfers during the year consisted of the following: 

From To 
Fund Amount Fund Amount 

Distribution of Municipal 
current operating Utility General 
income Department $550,000 Fund $550,000 

Operating expenses paid Capital Recreation 
by Capital Outlay Fund Outlay Fund ( 2.150) Center ( 2,150) 

Total $ 547.850 $ 547.850 

Capital transfers during the year consisted of the following: 

From To 
Fund Amount Fund Amount 

Payment of interest, fees and 2002 GOB 
principal by Governmental Sinking Recreation 
Fund for Enterprise Fund Fund $2,485,257 Center $2,485,257 

Capital outlay & debt payments Capital Outlay Recreation 
for the Recreation Center Fund 23,893 Center 23,893 

Total $2,5Q2,150 $2,5Q2,15Q 
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3.J. FUND EQUITY 

Reservations of retained earnings of the Municipal Utility Department are created either to (1) 
satisfy the legal covenants that require that a portion of retained earnings be segregated or (2) 
identify the portion of retained earnings that is not available for future operating expenditures. 
Specific reservations of retained earnings are summarized below. 

Reserve for Charter Required Legal Obligations - It has been interpreted by legal counsel that 
the Department is to encumber cash for goods and services ordered but not received as of the end 
of the year for purposes of determining "surplus revenues" that can be added to reserves or 
remitted to the City of Pryor Creek. Accordingly, a reserve has been provided for such 
encumbrances. 

Reserved for Capital Improvements from Sales Tax- This reserve is funded by a 1/2 cent 
sales tax and interest revenue. The Department is utilizing such revenues to fund depreciation 
for the waste water treatment plant as required in grant agreements. The excess can only be used 
for utility systems improvements and additions. The activity in this reserve account is 
summarized as follows: 

Balance - July 1, 2010 
Additions 

Reserve transfers in from sales tax 
Interest income applicable to reserve balance 

Subtractions 
Equipment and system additions paid for 

from reserves 

Balance - June 30, 2011 

$6,792,709 

875,207 
82,634 

957,841 

524,477 

524,477 

$7,226.073 

Reserve for Property, Plant and Equipment and Emergency and Disaster Relief- This 
reserve is authorized in the Charter of the City of Pryor Creek and is in accordance with State 
Statutes. It provides a method of funding future replacements and additions to fixed assets and a 
reserve for disasters. 

60 



The activity in this reserve account is summarized as follows: 

Balance - July 1, 201 0 

Additions 
Contribution of general operations to decrease 

unreserved cash to level of liabilities as of 
June 30, 2011 

Balance- June 30, 2011 

NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES 

4.A. Employee Pension 

I The Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System 

A. Plan Description 

$2,170,628 

137,500 

$2.308.128 

All firemen, both full time employees and volunteers, of the City of Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma are covered by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, 
which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer PERS 

All firemen, except those under 18 years of age and an employee who was hired after 
reaching age 45 unless he or she has prior service and will have completed twenty years of 
service by age 65 are eligible and must participate in the State PERS. The pension plan 
provides pension benefits, deferred allowances, and death and disability benefits. A 
member may retire after accumulating 20 years of service with the City or another entity 
covered by the State PERS. Benefits vest after 10 years of service. Employees who retire 
with 20 or more years of service are entitled to pension payments beginning at age 50. The 
benefit for full-time fireman is 2.5% of the average of the final 30 months salary times the 
years of service, with a maximum of 30 years. The benefit for volunteer fireman is $5.33 
per month times the years of service, with a maximum of 30 years. 

Pension provisions include deferred allowances whereby a firefighter may terminate with 
the City after accumulating 10 years of service but not before reaching the age of 50. The 
firefighter is entitled to all pension benefits upon reaching the age of 50 or by the time he 
would have completed 20 years of service, whichever is later. Pension provisions include 
death and disability benefits, whereby the disabled firefighter or surviving spouse is 
entitled to receive the same as a normal retirement with 20 years of service. 

The City's current-year covered payroll and its total current-year payroll for full-time 
employees is $523,114. Contributions and benefits for volunteer fireman are not based on 
payroll. 
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B. Contributions Required and Made 

The City's contribution to the plan is 13.0% of the salaries for full-time fireman and an 
annual contribution of $60 for each volunteer fireman. The full-time fireman contribute 
8% of their salaries. Volunteer firemen do not make contributions to the plan. 

Total contributions made during fiscal year 2011 amounted to $103,460, of which $66,926 
was made by the City and $36,534 was made by firefighters. Total contributions are 
allocated between the Municipality and the state. The contribution amounts for 
municipalities are set by State statutes. Therefore, the remainder of required contributions 
must be made by the State. 

C. Funding Status and Progress 

The amount of the total pension benefit obligation is based on a standardized measurement 
established by GASB-5 that, with some exceptions, must be used by a PERS. The 
standardized measurement is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits. 
This pension valuation method reflects the present value of estimated pension benefits that 
will be paid in future years as a result of employee services performed to date, and is 
adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases. A standardized measure of the 
pension benefit obligation was adopted by the GASB to enable readers of PERS financial 
statements to (a) assess the PERS funding status on a going-concern basis, (b) assess 
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and (c) make 
comparisons among other PERS and among other employers. 

Total unfunded pension benefit obligation of the State PERS as of July 1, 2011 , was as 
follows: 

Total pension benefit obligations 
Net assets available for pension benefits, 

at market 

Unfunded pension benefit obligation 

$2,760,356,036 

1.757,838,480 

$1 .002,517,5 56 

The measurement of the total pension benefit obligation is based on an actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2011. Net assets available to pay pension benefits were valued as of the 
same date. 

The City's 2011 required contribution to the State PERS represents less than one tenth of 
1% of the total current-year actuarially determined contribution requirements for all 
employers covered by the pension plan. 
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D. Related Party Investments 

During the fiscal year and as of June 30, 2011, the Oklahoma Firefighter Pension and 
Retirement System held no securities issued by the City of other related parties. 

II Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System 

A. Plan Description 

All policemen of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma are covered by the Oklahoma Police 
Pension and Retirement System, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer PERS. 

All policemen are covered except those less than 21 years of age or over 35 years of age 
when accepted for initial membership. The pension plan provides pension benefits, 
deferred allowances, and death and disability benefits. Upon completion of 20 years of 
credited service, a member is eligible for a normal retirement benefit payable immediately 
for life. The amount of the benefit is equal to 2 1/2% of the final average salary multiplied 
by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30 years of service considered. Final 
average salary means the average base salary of an officer over the highest 30 consecutive 
months of the last 60 months of credited service. 

Prior to completion of 10 years of service, a member receives a refund of contributions 
without interest. A member with 1 0 or more years of credited service, but not eligible for 
the normal retirement benefit, is eligible for a deferred vested benefit payable at the later 
of the date the member would have had 20 years of service or attained age 50. The 
amount of the deferred vested benefit is equal to 2 1/2% of the final average salary 
multiplied by the years of credited service. 

Disability and death benefits differ based upon whether the death or disability resulted in 
the line of duty or not. If in the line of duty, a benefit is payable immediately equal to the 
greater of 2 1/2% of the final average salary times the years of credited service (maximum 
30 years), and 50% of the final average salary. If not in the line of duty, a benefit is 
payable for a member who has completed 10 or more years of service equal to 2 1/2% of 
the final average salary times the years of credited service (maximum of 30 years). 
Additionally, upon the death of an active or retired member, the beneficiary shall receive a 
lump-sum of$4,000. 
B. Contributions Required and Made 

The City's contribution to the plan is 13.0% ofthe covered payroll. Additionally, the 
policemen contribute 8% of their salaries. Four individual policemen have signed up under 
special 5 years until retirement plan. In such an instance, the policemen do not pay in, but 
the City still contributes 13%. 

Total contributions made in the current year amounted to $200,314, of which $124,004 was 
made by the City and $76,310 made by the policemen. Total contributions are allocated 
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between the Municipalities and the State. The contribution amounts for the Municipalities 
are set by State statutes. Therefore, the remainder of required contributions must be made 
by the State. 

C. Funding Status and Progress 

The amount of the total pension benefit obligation is based on a standardized measurement 
established by GASB-5 that, with some exceptions, must be used by a PERS. The 
standardized measurement is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits. 
This pension valuation method reflects the present values of estimated pension benefits 
that will be paid in future years as a result of employee services performed to date, and is 
adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases. A standardized measure of the 
pension benefit obligation was adopted by the GASB to enable readers of PERS financial 
statements to (a) assess the PERS funding status on a going-concern basis, (b) assess 
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and (c) make 
comparisons among other PERS and among other employers. 

Total unfunded pension benefit obligation ofthe State PERS as of June 30, 201.1, was as 
follows: 

Total pension benefit obligations 
Net assets available for pension 

benefits, at market 

Unfunded pension benefit obligation 

$1,959,976,006 

1 ,822, 702,000 

$ 137.274.006 

The measurement of the total pension benefit obligation is based on an actuarial valuation 
as of June 30, 2011. Net assets available to pay pension benefits were valued as of the 
same date. 

The City's current year required contribution to the State PERS represents less than 1% of 
the total current-year actuarially determined contribution requirements for all employers 
covered by the pension plan. 

D. Related Party Investments 

During the fiscal year and as of June 30, 2011, the Oklahoma Police Pension and 
Retirement System held no securities issued by the City. 

III Pryor Creek Public Employee Retirement System (PCP ERS) 

A. Plan Description 

The City of Pryor Creek contributes to the Pryor Creek Public Employee Retirement 
System (PCPERS), which is a defined contribution pension plan administered by an 
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insurance company. The PCPERS covers all employees of the City of Pryor Creek who are 
not covered by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, the Oklahoma 
Police Pension and Retirement System, or the employees of the Municipal Utility 
Department, which has a separate plan. 

A defined contribution pension plan provides pension benefits in return for services 
rendered, provides an individual account for each participant, and specifies how 
contributions to the individual's account are to be determined instead of specifying the 
amount of benefits the individual is to receive. Under a defined contribution pension plan, 
the benefits a participant will receive depend solely on the amount contributed to the 
participant's account, the returns earned on investments of those contributions, and 
forfeitures of other participants' benefits that may be allocated to such participant's account. 
Coverage is extended to eligible employees who have completed 6 months of service and 
attained the age of20.5 . Contributions made by an employee vest immediately and 
contributions made by the City vest 10% for each year of service beginning with the first 
year. 

B. Contributions Required and Made 

Employees contributions to the plan are voluntary. An employee can, however, make 
elective contributions to the plan so that his or her contributions can be 1 0% of gross 
earnings. The City's required contribution to the plan is 9% of employee's gross earnings 
during the current year. 

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the City's required and actual contributions 
amounted to $136,474, which was 9% of its current year covered payroll of$1 ,516,228. 
Elective contributions by employees amount to $51,068. 

C. Related Party Investments 

The PCPERS held no securities of the City or other related parties during the year or as of 
the close of the fiscal year. 

IV. Municipal Utility Department of Pryor, Oklahoma Money Purchase Plan 

A. Plan Description 

The Municipal Utility Board contributes to the Municipal Utility Department of Pryor, 
Oklahoma Money Purchase Plan, (MUDPOMPP) which is a defmed contribution pension 
plan administered by an insurance company. The MUDPOMPP covers all employees of the 
Department. 

A defined contribution pension plan provides pension benefits in return for services rendered, 
provides an individual account for each participant, and specifies how contributions to the 
individual's account are to be determined instead of specifying the amount of benefits the 
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individual is to receive. Under a defmed contribution pension plan, the benefits a participant 
will receive depend solely on the amount contributed to the participant's account, the returns 
earned on investments of those contributions, and forfeitures of other participants' benefits 
that may be allocated to such participant's account. Coverage is extended to eligible 
employees who have completed one year of service and attained the age of 21. Contributions 
are not made by an employee and contributions made by the Department are vested 20% in 
the plan after two years of service. After six years, employees are fully vested. 

B. Contributions Required and Made 

Employee contributions to the plan are not allowed. The Department's required contribution 
to the plan was 10% for the year. 

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the Department's required and actual 
contributions amounted to $189,561, with a current year covered payroll of$1,895,611. 

C. Related Party Investments 

The MUDPOMPP held no securities of the City or other related parties during the year or as 
of the close ofthe fiscal year. 

4.B. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
The City manages these various risks through the purchase of commercial insurance with 
varying deductibles. These deductibles are well below materiality levels for the City. 
Additionally, the Municipal Utility Department has reserves for replacement of assets as 
described in Note 3 .J. During the last three years no claim has been settled for amounts in 
excess of insurance coverage. 

4.C. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the Auditor's Report. See Note 
3.G. regarding a material subsequent payment on long-term debt. 

66 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Required supplementary information includes fmancial information and disclosures that are 
required by the GASB, but are not considered a part of the basic fmancial statements. Such 
information includes: 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - General Fund and Street and Drainage Fund 

Unaudited 
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Beginning budgetary fund balance 
Resources (inflows) 
Taxes 

Cable TV franchise 
Telephone franchise 
Sales tax 
Utility gross receipts tax 
Cigarette tax 
Use tax 

Total taxes 

Intergovernmental 
Alcoholic beverage tax 
Grants and donations 

Total intergovernmental 

Charges for services 
Burial plots, etc. 
Library 
Swimming pool 

Total charges for services 

Fines and forfeitures 
Police fines 

Licenses and permits 
Various licenses 

Investment income 

Miscellaneous 
Rentals 
Miscellaneous 

Total miscellaneous 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

~ 1,097,529 

49,378 
27,966 

2,687,191 
2,468 

81 ,514 
239.138 

3,087,655 

53,204 
2 000 

55,204 

46,516 
7,458 

21,268 

75,242 

205,624 

9.049 

12,960 

2,520 
26,065 

28,585 

Final 

$ 1.097,529 

Unaudited 
68 

49,378 
27,966 

2,687,191 
2,468 

81,514 
239.138 

3,087,655 

53,204 
2,000 

55,204 

46,516 
7,458 

21,268 

75,242 

205,624 

9 049 

12,960 

2,520 
26,065 

28,585 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Actual Positive 
Amounts (Negative) 

~ 1,097,529 ~ 

8,782 ( 40,596) 
28,698 732 

2,996,581 309,390 
3,546 1,078 

93,253 11 ,739 . 
307,321 68,183 

3,438,181 350,526 

61 ,199 7,995 
I 19 003 117.003 

180,202 I24,998 

36,764 9,752) 
6,348 l, II 0) 

22,604 I 336 

65,716 9,526) 

209,679 4 055 

9 405 356 

12,793 167) 

2,950 430 
29,027 2,962 

31 977 3,392 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Other financing sources 
Operating transfers in 550,000 550.000 

Amounts available 
for appropriation 5,121.848 5,121,848 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 

General government 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total General Government 

City Clerk 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total City Clerk 

City Treasurer 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total City Treasurer 

City Attorney 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total City Attorney 

Municipal Court 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total Municipal Court 

201,460 
648.873 

850.333 

166,674 
10 900 

177 574 

19, 11 8 
975 

20,093 

48,775 
5 000 

53.775 

125,53 1 
5 050 

130,581 

Unaudited 
69 

201,960 
620,223 

822.183 

166,674 
10,900 

177 574 

19, 118 
I 125 

20.243 

48,175 
5 600 

53.775 

125,531 
5.050 

130.581 

Page2 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Actual Positive 
Amounts (Negative) 

550.000 

5.595.482 473.634 

201 ,920 40 
3 14,505 305.718 

5.16.425 305,758 

161,697 4,977 
10.885 15 

172.582 4 992 

19,074 44 
I 096 29 

20,170 73 

45,584 2,591 
5 503 97 

51,087 2.688 

113,356 12,175 
2.894 2.156 

116,250 14 331 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Police 
Personal services 1,900,407 1,900,407 
Maintenance and operation 143,925 168,925 

Total Police 2,044,332 2.069,332 

Fire 
Personal services 873,008 873,008 
Maintenance and operation 61,350 61.350 

Total Fire 934.358 934,358 

Civil Emergency Management 
Personal services 14,508 14,508 
Maintenance and operation 3 100 3,100 

Total Civil Emergency 
Management 17,608 17.608 

Planning and Zoning 
Personal services 1,295 1,395 
Maintenance and operation 12.650 12.550 

Total Planning and Zoning 13 945 13.945 

Parks and Pool 
Personal services 176,802 172,802 
Maintenance and operation 76.375 80.375 

Total Parks and Pool 253. 177 253.177 

Maintenance Garage 
Personal services 45,922 45,922 
Maintenance and operation 7 450 7 450 

Total Maintenance Garage 53.372 53.372 

Safety Director 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total Safety Director 

48,409 
6.100 

54.509 

Unaudited 
70 

48,409 
6 100 

54.509 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Actual Positive 
Amounts (Negative) 

1,894,337 6,070 
162.446 6 479 

2.056.783 12,549 

824,42 1 48,587 
60 784 566 

885.205 49 153 

14,508 
2.788 312 

17,296 312 

1,329 66 
I 428 11,122 

2 757 II 188 

171 ,293 1,509 
79.6 15 760 

250,908 2269 

44,678 1,244 
5.984 I 466 

50.662 2 710 

46,634 1,775 
4 478 1.622 

51 112 3 397 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 

Library 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total Library 

Cemetery 
Personal services 
Maintenance and operation 

Total Cemetery 

Total Charges to Operations 

Ending Budgetary Fund Balances 

Adjustments to reconcile to balance sheet 
Grants receivable 
Taxes receivable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Reserve for encumbrances 

Fund Balance 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

264,308 
73,150 

337,458 

162,683 
18.050 

180.733 

5. 121.848 

$ 

Unaudited 
71 

264,308 
73.150 

337.458 

165,683 
18.050 

183.733 

5. 121.848 

Actual 
Amounts 

242,95 1 
72.856 

315.807 

165,547 
16.991 

182.538 

4.689.582 

905,900 

5,053 
641 ,663 

43,379) 
4.882 

$I 5 14. 11 9 

Page4 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

21 ,357 
294 

21.651 

136 
1 059 

1 195 

432,266 

$ 90~ 900 



Beginning budgetary fund balance 
Resources (Inflows) 

Gasoline tax 
Commercial vehicle tax 
Sales tax 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Grants, donations 

Amounts available for 
appropriation 

Charges to appropriations 
Personal services 
Operation and maintenance 
Capital outlay 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

STREET AND DRAINAGE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

$ 1,041,832 $ 1,041,832 

35,254 35,254 
61,791 61,791 

1,125,072 1,125,072 
25,585 25,585 

1,000 1,000 
57,752 57,752 

2,348,286 2,348,286 

611,910 611,910 
233,650 233,650 

1,211,750 1,211,750 

Total charges to appropriations 2,057,310 2.057.310 

Ending budgetary fund balance 

Adjustments to reconcile to balance sheet 
Taxes receivable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Reserve for encumbrances 
Retainage 

Fund Balance 

$ 290 976 

Unaudited 
72 

$ 290 976 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Actual Positive 
Amounts (Negative) 

$ 1,041,832 $ 

17,614 17,640) 
61,946 155 

1,129,147 4,075 
15,638 9,947) 
8,511 7,511 

108,006 50,254 

2,382,694 34 408 

603,799 8,111 
232,114 1,536 
989.360 222,390 

1.825,273 232,037 

557,421 $ 266 445 

218,240 
8,932) 
2,009 
4,054} 

$ Z61681 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by 
the GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis. 

Such statements and schedules include: 

• Combining Statements - Nonmajor governmental funds 
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CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
CO~WINING BALANCE SlfEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30,2011 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

E-91 1 County-Wide Cemetery Cemetery Library Donations & Public Hotel& Fee 
Cash Fire Dept. Cnre Interest Care Seizures Cash Earmarked Works Motel Tax In-Lieu 
Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Monies Fund Authority Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash $10 1,732 $64,250 $6,190 $70,229 $22,369 $19,017 $ 179,091 $22,358 $66, 130 $52,912 
Investments 3,000 

Taxes receivable 7,013 11 ,138 3,622 

Due from other funds 2,390 

Total assets $108 745 75 388 $6190 $70,229 $22,369 $22,017 $179 091 $24,748 $69 752 $52,912 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 70 3,458 2,451 73 1 45 1,048 

Due to other funds 2,418 

Total liabilities 2,488 3,458 2,45 1 731 45 1,048 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 106,257 71,930 70,229 18,463 178,360 68,704 
Commmed 1,103 
Assigned 6,190 22,369 52,912 
Unassigned 24,703 

Total fund balances 106,257 71 930 6,190 70,229 22,369 19,566 178 360 24 ,703 68,704 52,912 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances $108 745 75,388 $6 190 $70 229 $22,369 s22 on $179 091 $24 748 $69 752 $52,9 12 



Special 
Revenue Capital 
Funds Outlay 
Total Fund 

$604,278 $846,940 
3,000 

21 ,773 37,977 

2,390 

$631441 $884 917 

7,803 13,857 

2,418 

10,221 13,857 

513,943 857,044 
1,103 14,016 

81 ,471 
24,703 

621 ,220 871,060 

$631 441 $884 917 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
Capital Real 
Outlay Property 

Reserve Acquisition 
Fund Fund 

$72,381 $374,005 

$72 381 $374 005 

$6,680 

6,680 

72,381 367,325 

72,381 367,325 

$72,381 $374 005 

Unaudited 
74 

Capital Total 
Library Projects Non-major 

Building Funds Governmental 
Fund Total Funds 

$16,188 $ 1,309,5 14 $1,9 13,792 
3,000 

37,977 59,750 

2,390 

$16 188 $1 347 491 $1 ,978,932 

20,537 $28,340 

2,418 

20 537 30,758 

16, 188 873,232 1,387,175 
14,016 15,119 

439,706 521,177 
24,703 

16, 188 1,326,954 1,948,174 

$16 188 $1 347 491 $1 ,978,932 



CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
County- Cemetery Donations/ Hotel& 

E-911 Wide Care Cemetery Library Eannarked Public Motel Fee-ln 

Cash Fire Dept. Interest Care Seizures Cash Monies Works Tax Lieu 
Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Authority Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Sales tax $62,002 

Other taxes 40,461 49.267 

Grantsfcontributions 20,312 19,982 

Interest 844 883 257 277 1,879 240 317 610 

Franchise taxes 27,824 

Fees and service 11,664 23,592 

Total revenues 4 1,305 62,002 883 11,664 257 20,589 45 ,453 28,064 49,584 610 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Library 5,574 533 

Recreation 3,327 

Police 31,0 11 6,231 

Tourism 51,922 

General Gov't 1,850 20,076 200 

Fire 37,701 7,035 

Debt service 
Principal 
Interest 

Capital outlay 8,615 13,444 3.190 

Total expenditures 31,011 37,701 8,615 19,018 22,166 20,076 51,922 200 

Excess (deficiency) 
of revenues over 
expenditures 10,294 24,301 883 3,049 257 1,571 23,287 7,988 (2,338) 410 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCESIUSES 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other 

financing sources 
and uses 

Net change in 
Fund balance 10,294 24,301 883 3,049 $257 1,571 23,287 7,988 (2,338) 410 

Fund balance, 
Beginning 95,963 47,629 5,307 67,180 22,112 17,995 155,073 16,715 71,042 52,502 

Fund balance, 
Ending $106,257 S11 930 $6,190 S70,229 $22,369 $19,566 $178,360 $24,703 $68,704 $52,912 



SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

FUNDS 

Special 
Revenue Capital 

Funds Outlay 
Total Fund 

$62,002 $218,802 

89,728 
40,294 

5,307 11,234 
27,824 

35,256 

260,411 230,036 

6,107 

3,327 
37,242 
51,922 
22,126 
44 ,736 

25,249 455,571 

190,709 455,571 

69,702 (225,54 1) 

(26,043) 

(26,043) 

69,702 (25 1,584) 

55 1,518 1,122,644 

$621,220 $871 ,060 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
Capital Real 

Outlay Property 

Reserve Acquisition 
Fund Fund 

20,223 
697 4,269 

18.306 

19,003 24,492 

6,680 

6,680 

19,003 17,8 12 

19,003 17,812 

53,378 349,5 13 

$72,381 $367,325 

Unaudited 
75 

Capital Total 
Library Projects Non-major 

Building Funds Governmental 
Fund Total Funds 

$21 8,802 $280,804 

89,728 
20,223 60,517 

186 16,386 21 ,693 
27,824 

18,306 53,562 

186 273,717 534,128 

6,107 
3.327 

37,242 
51,922 

6,680 28,806 
44,736 

455,577 480,826 

462,257 652,966 

186 (188,540) (118,838) 

(26,043) (26,043) 

(26,043) ($26,043) 

186 (214,583) (144,881) 

16,002 I ,54 1,537 2,093,055 

$16.188 S1 ,326,954 $1 948,174 



WINGARD, RAGSDALE & LANGLEY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTA \7S, PLLC 

18 NORTII VANN STREET. PR YOR. Ql.; 7-1361 
91 8-825-6441 OFFICE 918-825-6-1-13 FAX 

mail@wandrcpas.ncl 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To The Honorable Mayor and Counc ilors 
City of Pryor Creek 
Mayes County, Ok lahoma 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities, the business type activ ities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Pryor Creek (the City of Pryor, or 
the Ciry) for the year ended June 30, 20 II , which collectively comprise the City of Pryor's basic financial 
statements and have issued our repo11 thereon dated May 8. 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards general ly accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

I TERNAL CONTROL OVER Fl ANCIAL REPORTING 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Pryor Creek. State of Oklahoma ·s internal contro l 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of express ing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of express ing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
City of Pryor, State of Oklahoma's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an 
op inion on the effectiveness of the City of Pryor, State of Oklahoma's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the l imited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financ ial reporting 
that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all 
deficiencies, sign i ficant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certa in deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to 
be sign ificant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in inlernal control exists when the design or operation of a contro l does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider items 20 I 0-1 and 
20 I 0-4 to be deficiencies described in the accompanying schedu le of findings and responses to be material 
weaknesses. 
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to mer it attent ion by those charged with governance. We 
consider items 20 I 0-2 and 20 I 0-3, deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findi ngs and responses 
to be a significant deficiencies. 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Pryor Creek, State of Oklahoma's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain prov isions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

City of Pryor Creek, State of Ok lahoma's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit City of Pryor Creek, State of Oklahoma's 
response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended so lely for the information and use of management, the Council, others within the entity, 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and shou ld not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

WINGARD, RAGSDALE & LANGLEY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, PLLC 

M AY 8,2012 
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WINGARD, RAGSDALE & LANGLEY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, PLLC 

18 NORTH VANN STREET, PRYOR, OK 74361 
918-825-644 1 OFFICE 918-825-6443 FAX 

mail@wandrcpas.net 

SCI-IEDULE OF FI NDI NGS AN D R ESPONSES 

Audit findings, as reported in the June 30, 2010 audited financial statements, could not be resolved for the 
2011 audit engagement, as the timeframe between the issuance of the 2010 audit report and issuance of 
the 2011 audit report did not allow ample time for management to address these items. As such, these 
items are being repeated in the current year engagement, with the representation of management that the 
issues will be addressed prior to the 2012 audit engagement. 

2011- N/A no new findings 

2010-1 Monitoring Fixed Asset Records 

Criteria or spec!fic requirement: Fixed assets should be monitored periodical ly to ensure proper 
reporting. 

Condition: Inventory monitoring controls over fixed assets are not scheduled or performed. 

Context: Inquiries of management revealed certain inventory procedures were performed by 
departmental heads responsible for the custody of certain fixed assets in response to a deficiency 
reported in the previous year. Funher inquiry however, revealed no fixed asset inventory 
monitoring procedures are performed by those responsible for reporting these amounts. Key 
control activities to monitor custody of reported fixed assets are not present. 

Effect: Without monitoring controls, fixed asset records could be misstated or stolen. 

Cause: Periodic fixed asset inventory monitoring procedures are not scheduled or enforced by the 
department responsible for reporting these amounts. 

Recommendation: Implementation of procedures for monitoring fixed asset inventories should be 
implemented on a rotational basis, such that amounts reported are monitored with respect to their 
inherent risk of materially misstating the financia l statements. 

Corrective Action Update: 
An administrative person will be trained to physically inspect al l inventories and to establ ish a 
rotating basis by department so that all departments will be checked. 
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2010-2: Incomplete Employee Files 

Criteria or specific requirement: Employee files should be maintained with respect to 
documentation requirements as required by Federal regulations 

Condition: Certain employee files were missing forms such as form W4, Employee's Withholding 
Allo'yvance Certificate and fom1 I-9 Employment Eligibility Verification. 

Context: Testing of controls SUJTOtmding payroll procedures revealed numerous instances where 
employee fi les were missing one of the documents described in the condition above. 

Effect: Failure to maintain proper employee records can result in non-compliance with Federal 
and other related regulations. 

Cause: Failure to implement proper employee file requirements and controls surrounding the 
employment process to ensure compliance with those requirements. 

Recommendation: Implementation of a periodic review of employee files to ensure compliance 
with regulating agencies. 

Corrective Action Update: 
Current year audit testing confirmed tighter controls were established to insure that all employee 
files contain all required employment forms and documents. 

2010-3: Monitoring Separate Accounting System 

Criteria or specific requirement: Financial activit ies maintained in accounting systems separate 
from the accounting system used for financial reporting should be periodically monitored and 
reconciled. 

Condition: Included the City's financial statements are enterprise funds which report the activities 
of the City's Recreational Fitness Center and Golf Course. The revenues for these activities are 
accounted for by billing systems separate from the accounting system used for the City's financial 
reporting, however no monitoring controls are in place to ensure correctness of the reported 
information. 

Context: In response to a prior year control deficiency, the City has implemented procedures to 
reconcile between the accounting systems discussed previously: however the procedures do not 
include a periodic monitoring feature. 

Effect: Improper or fraudulent activities could occur. 

Cause: The controls over financial repot1ing for separate accounting systems are deficient in 
design. 
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Recommendation: Periodically, the depattment responsible for reporting the activities discussed 
previously, should include a monitoring procedure, such that source documentation and other 
evidence is obtained to ensure proper and complete reporting of these amounts. 

Corrective Action Update: 
During the cunent year, a change in staffing resulted in the inability of such monitoring activities 
to be implemented. It is the intent of management to implement this process in the subsequent 
reporting period. 

2010-4: Recognition of Grant Activities and Capital Contributions 

Criteria or specific requirement: Government accounting standards require recognition of capital 
contributions. This requirement is applicable to capital contributed through grants or other means. 

Condition: The City receives various forms of grant awards and other conuibuted capital, 
however, the information and communication controls surrounding the administration of these 
activities are not properly capturing certain financial infom1ation. 

Context: The City received approximately $1 ,225,000 of capital in the form of grants or other 
means which were not captured or recorded in the financial statements. 

Effect: The City's assets and revenues were materially understated. 

Cause: The procedmes for capturing grant and contributions activities are deficient in design. 

Recommendation: Someone charged with governance or directed by them should monitor the 
Board decisions made regarding grant and contribution activities. The implementation of 
necessary repmting features should be included and required before acceptance of these type 
items. 

Corrective Action Update: 
Current year audit testing confinned that the City was unable to address and conect this finding. 
Current year audit testing revealed steps had not yet been taken to address this finding as such the 
finding will be repeated in the cun ent year engagement. 
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